Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir y Fﬂlnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShII‘E

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: ClIir Tim Newhouse (Chairman)

. . CS/NG
Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman,
Clive Carver, Peter Curtis, lan Dunbar, 5 July 2013
Ron Hampson, Patrick Heesom, Trefor Howorth,
Richard Jones, Richard L|Oyd, Mike Lowe, Tracy Waters 01352 702331

Paul Shotton, lan Smith and Arnold Woolley tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 11TH JULY, 2013 at 10.00 AM to consider the
following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June
2013.

4  MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2014/15 - 2018/19 (Pages 13 - 30)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



10

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13 (OUTTURN) AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2012/13 (OUTTURN) (Pages 31 - 114)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed. The Head of Finance will also give a
short update on the currently projected revenue position in 2013/14 linked to
the final outturn for 2012/13.

WELFARE REFORM UPDATE (Pages 115 - 120)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENTS UPDATE (Pages 121 - 126)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND AREAS OF
IMPROVEMENT (Pages 127 - 134)

Report of Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
enclosed.

ASSET MANAGEMENT AS A FLINTSHIRE FUTURES WORKSTREAM
(Pages 135 - 138)

Report of Director of Environment enclosed.
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 139 - 142)
Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.




Agenda Item 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
13 JUNE 2013

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held at Delyn Committee Room, County
Hall, Mold CH7 6NA on Thursday, 13 June 2013

PRESENT: Councillor Tim Newhouse (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman, Clive Carver, Peter Curtis,
Ron Hampson, Patrick Heesom, Richard Lloyd, Mike Lowe, Paul Shotton,
lan Smith and Arnold Woolley

SUBSTITUTES:
Councillors: Alex Aldridge for lan Dunbar and Ron Davies for Trefor Howorth

APOLOGIES:
Councillor Richard Jones
Chief Executive

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillors: Bernie Attridge and Kevin Jones

CONTRIBUTORS:

Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for Corporate Management, Head of
Finance and Head of ICT and Customer Services

Corporate Finance Manager for minute number 11

Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development for minute numbers
13 and 14

Head of Legal and Democratic Services for minute number 14

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 16 May 2013 had
been circulated to Members with the agenda.

Councillor Patrick Heesom referred to the third paragraph on page 3 about
consideration being given to the reinstatement of the Winter Maintenance
reserves. The Leader of the Council responded that part of an underspend for
the previous financial year had been set aside for winter maintenance and more
detail would be provided in the final outturn report which would be submitted to
the Committee in July 2013. He said that it was important to have reserves for
winter maintenance and added that consideration was being given to
reinstatement of the reserves.

Page 1



10.

In response to a query from Councillor Paul Shotton on whether a
response had been received from Welsh Government on the application for costs
by Streetscene during the severe weather, the Corporate Finance Manager said
that an update had not yet been received.

Councillor Heesom queried when a report would be considered by the
Committee on the Medium Term Financial Plan and was advised by the Leader
of the Council that a report was being submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet
and would also be considered at the 11 July 2013 meeting of this Committee.
RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

WALES AUDIT OFFICE ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT

The Head of ICT and Customer Services introduced a report for Members
to receive the Council’'s Annual Improvement Report 2012 as published by the
Auditor General for Wales and to note the Council’s response.

The Head of ICT and Customer Services detailed the background to the
report explaining that this was the third Annual Improvement Report for Flintshire
and that it had been submitted to Cabinet and the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Wales Audit Office had indicated that this was a most
encouraging report for Flintshire County Council. It built on work undertaken and
was made up of three sections which covered the Council’'s delivery and
evaluation of services in relation to 2011/12 and its planning of improvement for
2012/13. The Auditor General had made no formal recommendations or
proposals for improvement and the Cabinet response to the report was included
as appendix 2. The Head of ICT and Customer Services highlighted areas of the
report on Education and Housing and the recognition of progress made on
previous recommendations on Corporate work such as Flintshire Futures.
Overall it was a positive Improvement report but there was still more work to be
undertaken in some areas.

The Leader of the Council said that the report had been received positively
at the Audit Committee meeting. He welcomed the report and the fact that it did
not contain any formal recommendations or areas of concern. He referred to
paragraph 33 on the issue of Flintshire County Council forecasting that only 26 of
its homes would fully comply with the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)
by 2020. He explained that this had been the position at the point of transfer and
now a business plan was in place to meet the WHQS for all of Flintshire’s Council
housing by 2022 without borrowing which was a significant improvement. The
Leader said that work was ongoing to amend the Council’s priorities as they were
not been changed in 2012 due to the new administration being in place so soon
after the priorities had been set. He intended to address the issues raised in
paragraph 72 about the presentation and content of the Plan to ensure that it was
easy for residents to understand.

Councillor Paul Shotton welcomed the report highlighting in particular the

WHQS being met by 2022. Councillor Patrick Heesom said that the report
highlighted a number of issues such as single status and waste. He commented

Page 2



11.

on the Estyn Inspection report which had been undertaken in February 2013 and
which had identified that six of the seven recommendations had been partly or
largely met with only one being fully met. Councillor Heesom referred to the
issue of economic development and town centre plans which he said were not
joined up with the masterplans which were in place. He suggested that a more
corporate approach to the issue was needed and spoke of the need to move on
from the Medium Term Financial Plan to something based on unit costs and unit
budgeting.

Councillor Clive Carver queried the five non affiliated Members shown on
appendix 2 and the Leader of the Council provided an explanation of the
Members it referred to. Councillor Ron Hampson welcomed the report
highlighting in particular the performance of Housing and the provision of the
WHQS by 2022. He said that over the next three to four years, several of the
Council’s housing would be up to a good standard following the provision of new
bathrooms, kitchens, windows etc.

Councillor Alex Aldridge compared the report to that received by other
authorities and said that this was a pleasing report as it did not contain any
recommendations. He spoke of the challenges ahead which included a public
service review and commented on economic development in Flintshire and
regeneration in Flint which he thanked officers for. On the issue of key
performance indicators he said that it was an internal document but what
mattered most to residents was how Flintshire County Council conducted its
business. He welcomed the fair, reasonable and balanced report.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13 (MONTH 12)

The Leader of the Council commented on the projected year end net
underspend of £4.313m which was a considerable movement from the £2.334m
underspend at Month 11. He welcomed the budget approach which had been
taken for 2013/14 and he recognised the financial challenges but he raised
concern about the timing of how the underspend had been reported and how it
had increased significantly in Month 12. He and the other Cabinet Members had
requested that action be taken to understand how the level of the underspend
had occurred. He said that it may be as a result of planned reductions or due to
the receipt of grant funding and he also queried whether different decisions would
have been made if the underspend had been noticed earlier. The Leader
commented on the need to protect frontline services for the future and explained
that work would be ongoing on the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). He
spoke of the challenges which faced the Council which included a currently
projected funding gap of £8.5m for the financial year 2014/15 which increased to
£28.5m for 2018/19. The Leader also spoke of the need to make provision for
the Single Status Agreement and that any policy decisions on the Schools
Funding Formula would add to these figures. He said that some of the
challenges were unknown and he commented on the announcement by the
Chancellor earlier in the year of the switch from revenue to capital funding for
some areas at UK level and the implications it had for local government funding.

Page 3



Other issues which were of concern included the challenges of homelessness,
Welfare Reform and winter maintenance. He hoped that the utilisation of the
underspend would form a large element of the discussions and deliberations of
the MTFP.

The Head of Finance agreed with the comments made and said that a
report on the MTFP would be submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet and to the
11 July 2013 meeting of this Committee. She explained that 80% of Council’s
funding was from the Government and therefore there was a significant impact if
this was reduced. The Month 12 Revenue Budget Monitoring Report had
highlighted the need for tighter financial controls, forecasting and financial
reporting and discussions on this were being undertaken with the Corporate
Management Team to make positive improvements. Work was being
undertaken to look at the impact of the underspend in 2012/13 on the 2013/14
budget and what additional choice could be generated for 2013/14 onto the
MTFP for 2014/15 and beyond.

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced the report to provide
Members with the detail of the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Month 12)
information for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account in 2012/13.

For Council Fund there was a projected year end underspend of £4.313m,
which was an increase of £1.979m on the £2.334m underspend reported at
Month 11 and appendix 1 showed a summary of the movements from Month 11.
The table on page 60 showed the analysed the variances by directorate and
showed underspends for all directorates except Lifelong Learning, which showed
a minor overspend.

Paragraphs 3.06 to 3.09 provided further detail on the movements and the
risks and assumptions associated with the projection were reported in paragraph
3.11.

Requests for carry forward for ICT and Flintshire Futures were detailed in
paragraphs 3.12 and 3.13 and were being recommended to Cabinet.

The amounts allocated for non-standard inflation were reported and the
Corporate Finance Manager advised that the final position would show an
unallocated amount of £0.072m.

Appendix 7 provided details on the movements on unearmarked reserves,
which, after taking into account the current projection and previously committed
amounts left a projected level of Contingency Reserves at 31 March 2013 of
£3.493m.

The Corporate Finance Manager also advised of a projected underspend
of £1.047m on the Housing Revenue Account which was an increase of £0.473m
from the net underspend reported at Month 11. Details of the variances were
provided in appendix 8. A projected closing balance at Month 12 of £1.902m was
reported, which at 6.9% of total expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%. The Corporate Finance Manager added that
£0.329m of the underspend had been committed for specific items in 2013/14.

Page 4



12.

Councillor Alex Aldridge accepted the report but commented on the
significant financial challenges ahead. He felt that the underspend could cause
comments from Councillors about the aspirations for residents in their wards.
Councillor Patrick Heesom raised concern about the underspend and said that it
was not the fault of the Leader but was a consequence of the management
system. He reiterated his earlier concerns that the MTFP should not be the
financial structure that the authority was working to. He added that some
departmental service plans duplicated issues and that work should be undertaken
to review the plans.

In response to the comments made, the Leader said that it was important
to understand how the underspend had occurred and work was being undertaken
on this. He reiterated his earlier comment about whether the underspend could
have been identified and reported sooner. He welcomed the fact that efficiencies
were being made without reducing services and he said that it was a positive
position to be in. The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management echoed the
comments of the Leader but added that it was important to learn lessons from the
situation.

Councillor Marion Bateman said that the Head of Finance had agreed to
provide further information on additional superannuation costs but the information
had not yet been received. The Head of Finance advised that she would provide
the requested information as soon as possible.

RESOLVED:
(a) That the report be noted; and

(b)  That the Head of Finance provide further information to Councillor Marion
Bateman on additional superannuation costs.

FINANCE AS A FLINTSHIRE FUTURES WORKSTREAM

The Head of Finance introduced a report to provide an update on the
Finance Workstream within the Flintshire Futures Programme.

The Head of Finance detailed the background to the report and explained
that the report provided information on progress made on the various projects
within the Finance workstream. Several issues around the aspects within the
workstream had developed significantly and were being built into the wider
organisational change programme. The work undertaken on the four areas of the
workstream were detailed in the report and the Head of Finance reminded
Members that the areas were of a corporate nature and extended beyond the
Finance directorate. New and innovative approaches were being taken to identify
ways of funding key capital priorities and a Member-officer board was to be
established with the first meeting to be held in June/July 2013 which would
consider a wide range of options. She added that the Capital Programme review
would inform the development of a capital strategy. Significant progress had
been made in identifying efficiencies and cost effective internal processes and
these were detailed in the report however the work on internal charging
processes was yet to be planned. Stretching existing finance programmes
included Invest to Save and income maximisation which had included the

Page 5



13.

introduction of new fees and charges in areas where the Council had not
previously done so. Significant progress had been made in the area of Corporate
Debt with the introduction of the Corporate Debt Policy followed by the Fair Debt
Policy. The objective of the Value for Money Strategy was to develop a strategic
programme which would enable the Council to be clear about the relative cost
and performance of its range of services. The Head of Finance concluded that
this was a significant piece of work.

Councillor Patrick Heesom welcomed the report and said that there was a
need to get the balance right and that the workstream highlighted the concerns
raised on the issue of recharging between departments. He also raised concern
about the future funding of public services and he hoped that the local authority
could offer a platform to allow the protection of those services.

The Leader of the Council responded that it was a multi-faceted approach
and that each area of the workstreams would be debated and discussed but he
reminded Members of the difficult and challenging times ahead. He said that the
Finance Workstream was not just about efficiencies but was about building
growth too and added that capital was under extreme pressure. The Leader
referred Members to paragraph 3.04 where it was reported that a specific piece
of work to look at possible ways to fund affordable housing was due to be
reported to Cabinet in July 2013 and spoke of the aspiration of providing new
council housing. He commented on the need to provide growth and social needs
and indicated that a report on the issue would be submitted to a future meeting of
Cabinet.

Councillor Arnold Woolley referred to the challenging review of base
budgets in paragraph 3.15 and asked whether the budget process had been
based on a base budget or an annual incremental calculation. The Head of
Finance responded that it was a mixture of both adding that there was not a zero
based approach for each aspect of the budget but that it was important to have
an ongoing challenging review of budgets.

Councillor Paul Shotton welcomed the high collection rate of monies owed
to the Council for business rates and looked forward to the development of the
Value for Money Strategy.

Councillor Alex Aldridge raised concern about the practice to recharge
departments within the Council for work undertaken by other parts of the
authority. He welcomed the report as a vehicle for moving forward but
commented on the issue of sustainability of provision of services and spoke of
the significant challenges ahead.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 4 - JANUARY-MARCH 2013

The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
introduced a report to provide Members with an update for the fourth
quarter/whole year 2012/13 on the following areas:-

Page 6



Establishment

Headcount

Agency

Early Retirements (first and third quarter reports only)
Turnover

Diversity

Absence

It was reported that the number of placements for Agency Workers had
steadily decreased throughout the period and a table at paragraph 3.04
compared the number of placements for the whole year 2011/12 and 2012/13. At
31 March 2013 120 placements were active which was a decrease of 40% for the
same period in the previous financial year and there was also a decrease of 33%
in the number of placements over 12 weeks when compared to the figures for
March 2012. It was reported that a total saving of £307,110.64 had been made
for the financial year 2012/13 but it was expected that this would decrease over
forthcoming years.

On the issue of sickness absence the Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development explained that the table on page 120 showed the
figures for 2008/09 to 2012/13 and included an increase in sickness absence to
11.03 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) days lost per employee for 2012/13. This had
resulted in a red RAG status in the performance data included later in the
agenda. The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
advised that she would submit a report on attendance management to the 11 July
2013 meeting of the Committee which would provide details of the interventions
in place. She advised that there were some areas that were performing well but
that there were also some areas where the sickness level was higher than
expected. For the fourth quarter 70% of staff had a 100% attendance record
which was a slight improvement on the previous quarter however the figure was
only 41% for the whole year. Attendance by directorate had been provided for
2011/12 and 2012/13 along with a breakdown by service area within each of the
directorates for the four quarters and whole year 2012/13. It was important to
understand the causes of absence and the Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development advised that additional categories of absence had
been implemented to reduce the number of sickness absences classified as
‘other’.

Councillor Alex Aldridge queried whether the policy allowed employees to
take a days holiday in place of a days sickness. The Head of Human Resources
and Organisational Development responded that this could mask a particular
issue or problem but added that there was a need for flexibility. Councillor
Aldridge said that some individuals displayed patterns of absence on certain days
and he felt that flexibility could help in reducing sickness levels. The Cabinet
Member for Corporate Management appreciated the initiative suggested by
Councillor Aldridge but said that it may be an opportunity to not undertake
management responsibilities and added that there was a need to assess
recurring sickness levels.

Councillor Patrick Heesom queried the costs associated with the 120
agency staff placements as he felt that they appeared to be high. The Head of

Page 7



14.

Human Resources and Organisational Development advised she would obtain
further information on agency staff placements for Councillor Heesom. Councillor
Clive Carver queried whether relief/school supply staff were classed as agency
staff. The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
responded that they were not and she provided further information on
relief/school supply staff and explained the differences in the figures for
headcount and establishment.

Councillor Paul Shotton welcomed the reduction of the agency staff
placements and queried whether the Physiotherapy pilot undertaken in
Streetscene had been rolled out across the authority. He also congratulated the
70% of staff who had achieved 100% attendance for the final quarter of 2012/13.
The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development explained that
a report on the Physiotherapy pilot would be submitted to the 11 July 2013
meeting of the Committee. The scheme had been successful and there was now
a need to evaluate how to roll out the project.

Councillor Arnold Woolley queried whether a letter or certificate was
issued to staff who had 100% attendance. The Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development responded that this was piloted in the Housing
department but that it had not been rolled out consistently across other services.
Councillor Woolley also queried the figures in the report compared to the
workforce information data which was available in the Members’ Library as there
appeared to be a difference of 195 people. The Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development agreed to look at the figures and respond to
Councillor Woolley.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be noted;

(b)  That a report on attendance management be submitted to the 11 July
2013 meeting of the Committee;

(c) That the Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
provide further information to Councillor Patrick Heesom on agency staff
figures and to Councillor Arnold Woolley on a discrepancy in the
headcount figures.

QUARTER 4 AND YEAR END SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS

The Chairman introduced a report to request that the Committee consider
the 2012/13 Quarter 4/Year End service performance reports, note the draft year
end position of the Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges (SARC) and
note the performance made against the Improvement Targets contained within
the performance report.

Finance

The Head of Finance gave a short presentation on the performance within
each of the service areas, outlining work which had been undertaken to improve

Page 8



performance and areas where improvement was needed, as outlined within the
report.

Councillor Paul Shotton referred to the section on Welfare Reform and
welcomed the work which had been undertaken by the authority.

In referring to the SARC document, Councillor Alex Aldridge raised
concern about the relationship with the Local Health Board & Public & Primary
Health. He commended the work of the Chief Executive on the issue which
included offering assistance from the authority to the Health Board to identify
possible areas of land for the siting of a health centre in Flint.

Human Resources and Organisational Development

The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development gave a
short presentation on the performance within each of the service areas, outlining
work which had been undertaken to improve performance and areas where
improvement was needed, as outlined within the report.

Councillor Patrick Heesom queried the amount which had been set aside
for Single Status. The Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development responded that approximately £25m was available as a reserve for
Single Status and the settlement of Equal Pay claims. She explained that work
was still ongoing on both issues with senior officers and Trade Unions. As stated
in the update, the Part 3 (terms and conditions) had been provisionally agreed
with the Trade Unions but final work on the design of the pay and grading
structure was currently being undertaken.

On the performance indicator for appraisals, the Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development advised that the figure for Corporate
Services should read 58% and not 38% as reported. There were a number of
issues relating to capturing the data for completed appraisals but the work which
had been undertaken to date was encouraging and the issues were being
addressed.

ICT and Customer Services

The Head of ICT and Customer Services gave a short presentation on the
performance within each of the service areas, outlining work which had been
undertaken to improve performance and areas where improvement was needed,
as outlined within the report.

On the performance indicator for Helpdesk Calls fixed on time, the Head of
ICT and Customer Services advised that the current year outturn should read
93% and not 91.53% as reported. He added that a report on procurement would
be submitted to the meeting of this Committee scheduled for 11 July 2013. The
information provided on visitor enquiries at the Holywell Connects office would be
followed up by a questionnaire which would be sent to the users of the centre to
ask about their visit. He concluded that the performance information from the
General Register Officer would be submitted to the Committee on an annual
basis as part of the performance report for ICT and Customer Services.

Page 9



15.

Legal and Democratic Services

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services gave a short presentation on
the performance within each of the service areas, outlining work which had been
undertaken to improve performance and areas where improvement was needed,
as outlined within the report.

In referring to the performance indicator on Breach of the Data Protection
Act by the Council, the Head of Legal and Democratic Services was pleased to
report that the RAG status had changed from red to amber following an audit by
the Information Commissioners Officer (ICO) in March. One of the
recommendations in the report from the ICO was that a senior officer had to be
nominated for data protection issues and the Corporate Management Team had
agreed that it should be the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services explained that the number of
Freedom of Information Act requests which had been received had reduced
slightly when compared to the same quarter in 2011/12 but the numbers
determined within the 20 day response time had increased. He added that the
number of Environmental Impact requests had reduced but the number
determined within the 20 day response time was 100% compared to 96% for the
same period in 2011/12. He explained that he would review the inclusion of
some of the performance indicators for future reports.

In response to a query from Councillor Patrick Heesom about
Environmental Impact requests, the figure reported was for the number of
requests which had been received and not for the number of people making the
request.

On the issue of the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement, the
Head of Legal and Democratic Services said that the issue had been considered
at a recent meeting of the Audit Committee and the consensus was that
Members should be included in the process. A request had also been received
for the Constitution Committee to review the Standards and Ethical Framework
particularly on the issue of officer/Member relations. Councillor Heesom
requested that the Code of Corporate Governance be reviewed as it had not
been reviewed since 2003.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced a report to consider the
Forward Work Programme of the Committee.

The Member Engagement Manager detailed the items to be submitted to
the meeting scheduled for 11 July 2013 and advised that as discussed earlier, a
report on attendance management would also be considered at the meeting. He
also advised Members of the items which were to be submitted to the meetings
scheduled for September 2013 to January 2014.

Page 10



16.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be noted; and

(b)  That the Forward Work Programme be amended to include a report on
attendance management at the 11 July 2013 meeting.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press and no members of the public in
attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 1.04 pm)

Chairman

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2014/15 - 2018/19

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2014/15
to 2018/19 for consideration.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) are critical aspects to the Council’s overall
governance arrangements.

2.02 Consideration of the MTFP is included within the Forward Work
Programme for the Committee for consideration in July.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 The report attached at Appendix 1 was considered by Cabinet on
18" June 2013.

3.02 Cabinet supported the recommendations as set out in 4.01 of the
report. Included amongst the recommendations was to refer the
MTFP to this Committee for consideration and a commitment to
receive verbal feedback at the next Cabinet on 16" July 2013.

3.03 Members will note that this revision is at 315 May 2013. The MTFP is
never “complete” or “finished”, but is an ever evolving forecast of the
Council’s financial position. The next revision is planned for formal
reporting by October. However, any significant updates will be
provided verbally to Scrutiny.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4,01 Members are asked to consider the report and to provide any
feedback to Cabinet.

Page 13



5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.00

9.00

9.00

10.00

10.00

11.00

11.00

12.00

12.01

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Consultation with Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultation undertaken with Corporate Resources Overview &
Scrutiny.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Cabinet Report and appendices.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson, Corporate Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 14



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 JUNE 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE & CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2014/15 TO

2018/19

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2014/15
to 2018/19 for consideration.

1.02 To seek endorsement to the approach for future development and
reporting.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) are critical aspects to the Council’s overall
governance arrangements.

2.02 The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/15, incorporating the
MTFP, was approved by Council in June 2011, following detailed
consideration by the Executive and Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

2.03 Updates to the MTFP have been proved to Members with the budget

reports for 2012/13 and 2013/14. The most recent update was
provided in the 2013/14 budget report to Council on 1% March 2013.
Whilst indicating a potential budget gap at that point of £29m over the
five years to 2017/18, the report did identify that this gap would
increase as further work was carried out to include:

e The inclusion of the effects of likely revised funding forecasts from
the UK Treasury and Welsh Government (WG) decisions on the
allocation of funding to other areas of the public sector in Wales.

¢ Investment options for key organisational priorities including Single
Status and Equal Pay, School Modernisation, School Funding
Formula Review, Social Care Strategy and Capital Programme
Strategy.

Page 15



2.04

2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

It was identified that the updated MTFP to be published in mid 2013
would inform a challenging and evidence based review of priorities for
investment and priorities for disinvestment / efficiency and be a true
basis and impetus for the next phase of organisational change within
the Council.

The Council’s response to the Wales Audit Office Improvement Report
(WAOQO) in May 2013 sets out that an updated MTFP will be published
in June 2013 alongside the Improvement Plan; that it will be far more
advanced in planning the costs of Council Priorities and investments
and in setting new efficiency targets for the period to 2018 and that it
will reflect the changing financial national picture and it's impact on
Council financial planning as important context.

The publication of the new Improvement Plan with refreshed
Improvement Priorities provides an important opportunity to ensure
that the financial strategy is focused on enabling resources to be
aligned in order to achieve them.

Consideration of the MTFP is in the Forward Work Programme of
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee for
11" July 2013.

CONSIDERATIONS

The Medium Term Financial Plan (to follow as Appendix 1) is the first
of two revisions of the published Medium Term Financial Plan within
2013-14.

The aims of this first revision are:-

e To present an updated forecast of the impacts of the changing and
worsening national fiscal position, and inflationary trends, on the
core resources available to the Council to meet its priorities and
maintain its services.

e To present a first forecast of the investment needed to support the
priorities of the Council.

e To present, by combining the above, the updated revenue ‘gap’ to
be bridged by organisational change, efficiencies and choices
between services.

This revision of the MTFP reports the most accurate forecasts
possible as at 31% May 2013.

Page 16



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

The second revision of the Medium Term Financial Plan will be
published by October 2013. The second revision will:-

e Update the forecast with the most accurate information at that
time.

e Set out the Council’'s developing programme of organisational
change and re-design to further modernise the organisation and
secure major efficiencies in costs and overheads to meet its
targets. The second revision will be accompanied by a fuller
updated organisational change and re-design plan which builds on
and extends current activity.

e Enable the Council to make informed choices over base budget
allocations to service functions according to need and choice.

e Provide a platform for the setting of a sustainable annual budget
for 2014-15 as the third of the five years of this Council under this
plan.

In considering the MTFP, it is important to recognise that it will never
be “complete” or finished.” It is an ever evolving forecast of the
Council’s financial position, which is continually updated to take in
and/or refine latest forecasts of funding, investment needs and the
opportunities to be gained from efficiency or saving measures.

In relation to the budget for 2014/15, Corporate Heads, Directors and
Heads of Service are already working on:-

e Continuation of current programmes of organisational reform and
implementing key service reviews.

¢ Identifying areas for budget re-alignment based which reflect the
projected outturn for 2012/13 and the early emerging position for
2013/14 from the first two months of the year, and

e Seeking all opportunities possible for efficiencies and savings
within service areas as a matter of good budget management.
These are additional to the efficiencies to come from the next
phase of the organisational change and modernisation
programme.

The October revision of the MTFP will be one of the elements to be
incorporated into a refresh of the Medium Term Financial Strategy for
publication in March alongside the budget for 2014/15.

Page 17



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to:
(a) Consider the Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/15 to 2018/19.

(b)  Support the approach to be adopted for ongoing development
and reporting.

(c) Refer the Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/15 to 2018/19 to
Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11
July 2013 for consideration and to receive verbal feedback at
the Cabinet meeting on 16th July 2013 so that Cabinet can
receive the feedback prior to the summer recess.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.
The Medium Term Financial Plan sets out the currently projected
levels of funding over the five years to 2018/19 and the potential
budget gap which will need to be met.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as result of this report

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as result of this report

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as result of this report

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as result of this report

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The
Committee’s forward work programme includes consideration of the
MTFP at the meeting to be held on 11 July 2013.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None at this stage

Page 18



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 - Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/15 to 2018/19 as at
31% May 2013

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Flintshire County Council

Medium Term
Financial Plan

(Council Fund)

2014/15 - 2018/19

Revision as at
31st May 2013

Page 21



1. Context

Re-setting the Medium Term Financial Plan

This is the first of two revisions of the published Medium Term Financial Plan
within 2013-14.

The aims of this first revision are:-

¢ to present an updated forecast of the impacts of the changing and
worsening national fiscal position, and inflationary trends, on the core
resources available to the Council to meet its priorities and maintain its
services

e to present a first forecast of the investment needed to support the
priorities of the Council

e to present, by combining the above, the updated revenue ‘gap’ to be
bridged by organisational change, efficiencies and choices between
services

This revision of the MTFP reports the most accurate forecasts possible as at
315 May 2013.

The second revision of the Medium Term Financial Plan will be published by
October 2013. The second revision will:-

¢ update the forecast with the most accurate information at that time.

e Set out the Council's developing programme of organisational change
and re-design to further modernise the organisation and secure major
efficiencies in costs and overheads to meet its targets. The second
revision will be accompanied by a fuller updated Organisational
Change and Re-Design Plan which builds on and extends current
activity.

e enable the Council to make informed choices over base budget
allocations to service functions according to need and choice

e provide a platform for the setting of a sustainable annual budget for
2014-15 as the third of the five years of this Council under this Plan

The Council Fund Budget

The 2013/14 total budget for delivering council fund services is £293m. The
money to finance this spending (as for all councils) comes from two main
sources. The maijority of funding (80%) comes from Welsh Government
through the revenue support grant/non domestic rates pool and numerous
specific grants (many of which fund core services), with the remainder (20%)
being raised locally from Council Tax. This means that Council services are
heavily reliant on external funding. In a period of national fiscal constraint
where such funding is under extreme pressure, the national funding position
sets the context for us.

Page 22 3



Government has made past commitments to protect key spending areas,
however, the worsening financial scenario will mean that this position cannot
be maintained. Analysis of the reductions in funding experienced in England
over the last comprehensive spending review period since 2010 show
average reductions of 4% per annum year on year. Whilst the actual scale of
probable reductions for 2014/15 is not yet known, a 1% reduction in the
funding received in 2013/14 would, as an illustration, add £1m to the projected
gap for 2014/15. Compared to the English scenario, at 4% it would be an
additional £7m.

For Flintshire, as with all Councils, this will mean adopting a broader
programme of organisational reform with more ambition and pace, making far
more challenging efficiencies in operating costs and the costs of employment,
ensuring value for money and reducing wastage to a minimum and, hardest of
all, making choices between services and their needs for investment.

Achieving Local Priorities

The newly published Improvement Plan 2013/14 sets out four shared priorities
with our partners at a County level, and the eight priorities for the Council
itself. All of our priorities remain important, but in any one year a number of
them will stand out for special attention. Setting priorities helps us focus our
attention and resources on the things that matter most. We call these our
Improvement Priorities. Our eight Flintshire County Council priorities are:

Housing

Environment

Living Well

Poverty

Economy and Enterprise
Skills and Learning

Safe Communities

Modern and Efficient Council

Not all priorities necessarily need extra resources; some inevitably do. The
priorities should guide investment choices as the Council balances the
resources it has at its disposal with the ‘competing’ demands of its services
and the communities they support.

Resources are in place to deliver the priorities for 2013/14. Some of these
resources are met from within the base budget but there was specific and
positive investment in the 2013/14 budget as detailed in the budget report in
March.

Over the five year life of the Council, the full set of priorities will adapt and the
annual set of priorities selected for special attention will change according to
need and circumstances. The financial impacts of additional investment in
specific new priorities from 2014/15 will be included in future revisions to the
MTFP as policy decisions are taken over the coming months. For planning
purposes, the forecast also includes an annual amount of £1.6m for

Page 23 5



2. Medium Term Financial Strategy &
Medium Term Financial Plan

The role of the MTFS and MTFP

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP) are critical aspects to the Council's overall governance
arrangements.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy provides a framework for the financial
principles through which revenue and capital resources will be forecast,
organised and managed to deliver the Council's vision and strategic
objectives.

The Medium Term Financial Plan forecasts funding levels and resource
requirements over the medium term, identifies the gap between the two and
enable specific actions to be identified to balance the budget and manage
resources.

Continuous Development

The MTFP will never be “complete” or finished.” It is an ever evolving forecast
of the Council’s financial position, which is continually updated to take in and /
or refine latest forecasts of funding, investment needs and the opportunities to
be gained from efficiency or saving measures.

In the light of the national and local context described, it is essential that the
Council has a robust Medium Term Financial Plan and a strategy to deliver
the actions required to manage the budget gap over the short and medium
term and which looks ahead to the longer term.

Through the next planned stages of development, we are committed to:

e recognise the full extent of the cost of service demands and potential
investment choices and growth

¢ more fully identify the extent of the potential budget gap

e quantify potential efficiency opportunities, and in particular, take account of
when the financial benefits of longer term projects may be realised

Integrating the MTFP into the Medium Term Financial Strategy
The October revision of the MTFP update will be one of the elements to be

incorporated into a refresh of the Medium Term Financial Strategy for
publication in March alongside the budget for 2014/15.

Page 24 7



School Funding Formula Review - The Council has completed the
first stage of a review of the school funding formula. The options
emerging from the review work are planned for consideration over the
summer / early autumn with a view to possible implementation from the
2014/15 academic year. The review has covered how the formula for
the delegated budget is allocated to individual schools and whether the
total funding is adequate to meet critical school needs and statutory
responsibilities.

Whilst there are number of variables, using some broad assumptions, there is
potential for the gap to increase to over £10m for 2014/15 and £40m over the
5 year period

How does this compare to the last published MTFP?

The last publication of the MTFP was in March, alongside the 2013/14 budget.
At that stage, the reported budget gap was £7.626m in 2014/15 and
£29.453m over 5 years. The difference to the figures as at 31st May is mainly
due to a reduction in the estimated level of funding from WG (£2.4m as per
scenario 3), an increase in estimated council tax income of £0.553m
(increased base and collection rate), the net effect of costs in relation to
services due to demand and external influences (£1.228m) and a reduction in
the broad assumption for investment and growth (£2.500m) now that much
more detailed work has been undertaken on likely levels required (see below).

Current Forecast — detailed information

A summary of the ‘headline’ figures with regard to the updated MTFP are
attached as Appendix 1.

The table is presented in such a way as to detail the position at various
stages, for example, an inflationary increase on the existing budget results in
a projected budget gap of £2.885m, adding on the indicative amounts of
previous year decisions increases to gap to £5.693m and so on.

Funding
National Funding

Aggregate External Finance (AEF)

Approximately 80% of the Council's revenue funding is derived from Revenue
Support Grant (RSG) and the Council's distribution of the National Non
Domestic Rates Pool (NNDR).

The Local Government Final Settlement 2013/14 provided indicative funding
of £200.970m for 2014/15. Additional Funding of £0.869m was received to
enable the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) (introduced from April
2013 to replace Council tax benefit) to provide support at 100% for eligible

Page 25 9



Investment in Services, Priorities and Improvements
Base Budget 2013/14

The approved total budget of £293.3m for 2013/14 is rolled forward and the
starting point for the MTFP covering 2014/15 to 2018/19.

Inflation

Each year an assessment needs to be made on the inflationary increase
required for service areas. The amount included of £4m covers the effect of a
1% pay award for all workforce groups, standard price inflation at 2%, above
standard inflation as detailed below and income at 3%.

The table below details the assumptions currently made and their basis:-

Inflation Current | Based on
%
Pay 1% Latest public sector pay
expectations
Price 2% Initial high level assumption -

consistent with economic forecasts

NSI Energy 8% Energy Unit advice

NSI Fuel 11.2% UK Fuel price tax escalator
NSI Food 5.8% National reports

Fees and 3% Based on historical increases
charges

Inflation assumptions are under continual review. More detailed calculations
by service area will be included in the next reported revision.

The Projected Shortfall in 2014/15 taking into account inflation is
£2.885m

Previous Year Decisions

Each year as the budget is set; some decisions (which are clearly set out)
have implications for future year's budgets. The full year effect of previous
year budget decisions is required to be adjusted to the base budget in order to
‘follow through’ the decisions made in budgetary terms. For 2014/15 the
impact for all Service Areas is an increase in the budget requirement of
£2.808m rising by a further £2.743m in 2015/16.

Included in the 2013/14 budget report was an indicative additional amount of
£1.6m p.a. to support investment in organisational change programmes and

Page 26 11



* Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS)
An initial assessment of £0.300m has been included to take account of
caseload and the increased cost of support linked to the assumed
council tax rise. This will need full assessment in the light of the CTRS
scheme for 2014/15, the level of Welsh Government funding and the
assumed council tax collection rate.

. Prudential Borrowing
The revenue impacts of the approved capital programme to be met
from prudential borrowing has been updated to reflect the future years
impact which requires additional funding of £0.252m from 2016/17 and
an additional £0.029m from 2017/18.

Efficiencies

. Social Care Transition
The reported underspend position in 2012/13 has been followed
through into a revised assessment of client costs for future years. An
initial view has been taken that there will be an efficiency of £0.300m
from 2014/15. The detailed work being undertaken to review this area
will provide an updated estimate for inclusion in the next revision.

The effect of including all of the above is an additional budget
requirement of £1.288m for 2014/15 (additional £3.333m over 5 years)

The Projected Shortfall in 2014/15 taking into account the above
adjustments is £6.981m

This revision as at 31%' May has been produced prior to the final outturn for
2012/13 being concluded. The latest projection as at Month 12 estimates a
net under spend of £4.313m, after taking account of under and over spends
across services. Initial work to estimate the impact of this on the current
MTFP assumptions indicates that there could be £2m of recurring under
spend, but this would be offset by pressures of £1.4m if they should continue
at the same level as in 2012/13. These initial estimates are not included in
the MTFP at this point. They are subject of ongoing review and refinement
and will need to be considered in detail for possible re-alignment of budgets in
2013/14 and future years. The final outturn will be reported in July,

Further Investment/Growth

Each year as part of the budget process a number of areas have historically
been identified as requiring further investment and/or growth. The early
identification of the areas detailed above should reduce the amount required
for 2014/15 compared to previous years. However, in the interest of prudence
an amount of £1.5m pa is currently included based on the £3m identified in
2013/14 less the amount attributable to those items.

The Projected Shortfall in 2014/15 taking into account the above is
£8.481m

Page 27 13



e continued and new cross organisational reviews under the Flintshire
Futures Programme

In recent years the Council has been modernised and changed significantly. It
has been necessary to identify total efficiencies of £28.9m over the last five
years to balance the annual budget through planned corporate and service
level change. Some fundamental service reviews such as Streetscene,
Housing and Adult Social Care have demonstrated how value for money can
be obtained through aligning resources effectively to priorities and service
standards, how major efficiencies can be achieved to be ‘recycled’ into
service improvements, and how continuous improvement can carry on year
on year with new energy and ideas for new ways of working.

The developing plans for a more expansive and challenging programme of

change and reform will be set out before the next revision of the MTFP
building on the above.

Page 28 15



(wL2'2z)  (s9'cz)  (esi'6L)  (968'ct)  (902°2) T OUBUSOS JI ||ejlIoys pasiry
(ees'oz)  (oiv'zz)  (goo'st) (gLz'zy)  (szg'9) | OLeUSDS JI ||efoYs pasirey
©SY UO UoHONPal HAA [BIUS)O JO Joedwj
(68v'8z) |lozv've) [l(boe‘er) Hi(129'vL) =_:wvé (a1qepeay) / liesaoys Buipung
Iszz'Les | ]zo0'sze |llovv'ste [lsci Lie || [696°20E ainyipuadx3 jejol
_awtwﬁ (ozv'vz) Miros'sL) [IliLzo'vL) |HiKLey'8) (alqeneay) / llesoys Buipung
00G'L 00S'L 00S°L 00G°L 00S‘L YIMOID/JUSLUISSAU| BINJNH

lege'oz) Wloze'zz) Mivorel) J(LzL'EL) UHLE6'0) | B0 SIAD
€52 9/9 zee'l (912) 88z’ S8j0UBIoIY8/SIS00 PaduUaNjjul Ajfeuselx3/pueweq
ltocz'oz) llosz'zz) llesL'zL) lilii(zee'cl) Mliie69'S) llejoys pasinay
- 62 zse evL'e 808 SUOISIDa(] SIBB A SnojAald
ocz'9z) |liCLez'ze) Qliloss'aL) [lii+9'0L) fiilices ) uonejjul snid Jo6pnq piemio} jjos 18)je |[BjjIOYS
civ'y Z6E'Y YArA 120'% (swoouj/ISN/eoUd/Aed) UoHEU|
200°62E otb‘sle  |(ISCL'LLE 9v€‘c6C piemaisod pajjoy j1obpng aseg
ainypuadx3g
6c.'20¢ | [loss‘00¢ |[{[z8r°‘862 88Y'v62 Buipung [ejol
9.'ve v9.L'vE v9.L'vE 9. 'vE (Jueis Juswaaiby awooInQ pue sy1adg) Buipung juels) BY0
5.6°L92 Z18'69Z [|(|I8LL‘€92 pZL'6SC juswaainbay 196png
GGG'89 L6E£'99 16279 ¥0€'09 xe] |1ouno)
LZv'661 LZy'e6l LZv'661 LZv'661 HANN/OSY (43v) Buipun; jeuse)x3 ajebaibby
Buipunj

000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
L GLIRLOZ ||| 8LI/LOZ L GL/FLOZ |

| Xipuaddy

61/810Z - SL/iY1L0T uonoaloid jeroueuly

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13
(OUTTURN) AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2012/13
OUTTURN

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13
(Outturn) and Capital Programme 2012/13 (Outturn) information.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Outturn) and Capital
Programme 2012/13 (Outturn) reports will be presented to Cabinet on
16" July 2013. Copies of the reports are attached as Appendix A and
Appendix B to this report.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Members are asked to note the reports.

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 As setoutin the reports.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As setoutin the reports.

6.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 None.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None.

Page 31



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A - Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Outturn)
Appendix B — Capital Programme 2012/13 (Outturn).

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:
Telephone:
Email:

Gary Ferguson, Corporate Finance Manager
01352 702271
gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 32



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 16 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13
(OUTTURN)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

1.02

To inform Members of the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account
Outturn for 2012/13 (subject to audit) and the impact on the respective level of
These figures are included in the draft
Statement of Accounts 2012/13 which will be reported to Audit Committee on

reserves at 315 March 2013.

17" July 2013.
INDEX OF CONTENTS
Section 2 Executive Summary
Para 3.01 Council Fund Summary Table
Para 3.13 - 3.19 | Brief Overview of the Year
Section 4 Non Standard Inflation/Central Contingencies
Section 5 Unearmarked Reserves
Section 6 Housing Revenue Account
Appendix 1 Council Fund Movement of Variances from
Month 12
Appendix 2 Community Services - Variances Summary
Appendix 3 Environment — Variances Summary
Appendix 4 Lifelong Learning — Variances Summary
Appendix 5 Corporate Services — Variances Summary
Appendix 6 Central & Corporate Services — Variances
Summary
Appendix 7 Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account -Variances Summary
Appendix 9 Achievement of Efficiencies Summary

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01

Members are requested to note the final outturn as detailed below:

e Council Fund — Net Underspend of £4.229m (£4.313m at Month 12)
¢ Housing Revenue Account ~ Net Underspend of £1.076m (£1.047m at

Month 12)

Page 33



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

CONSIDERATIONS

The table below shows a final outturn in-year underspend of £4.229m

Original | Revised In-Year Over / . .
Non Ring-fenced Ring-fenced
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Budget | Budget | (Under) spend ¢ 9
AND INCOME
Month 12| Outturn [Month 12| Outturn |Month 12| Outturn
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Directorates
Community Services 58.437| 58.614| (3.432) (3.489)| (2.446)i (2.481) (0.986)] (1.008)
Environment 31.794, 31.811| (0.053)] (0.040)] (0.053)] (0.040)
Lifelong Learning 109.219] 110.993 0.006 0.033 0.935 0.935( (0.929)| (0.902)
Corporate Services 17.469] 18.079) (0.271)| (0.287)] (0.271)| (0.287) - -
Total Directorates 216.919] 219.497| (3.750)] (3.783)] (1.835)| (1.873) (1.915) (1.810)
g;r:r"ac'ea"d Corporate 25.750] 23.181| (0.563)| (0.446) (0.563) (0.446)
Total 242.678] 242.678] (4.313)] (4.229)] (2.398)] (2.319)} (1.915) (1.910)

The original budget column reflects the budget approved by Council on 1
March 2012. The Revised Budget column reflects in year virements which
have been approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules.

The significant in year variances at final outturn are detailed in Appendices 2-
6 (Council Fund) and Appendix 8 (HRA). The significant changes for the
Council Fund from Month 12 are detailed in Appendix 1.

The Month 12 position as reported to Cabinet on 18" June 2013 showed a
significant projected movement of £1.979m to that previously reported at
Month 11. It was reported that although in some areas this positive
improvement reflected the outcome of planned activities and positive budget
management, it also raised the issue of interaction between service managers
and finance to ensure that variances are identified at an earlier stage. As
discussed at Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny in
June this significant movement at the year end has highlighted the need for
tighter financial controls, forecasting and timelier reporting.

A detailed exercise by each Head of Service as the accountable budget
manager has been undertaken which has reviewed the reasons for variances
reported from month 8 onwards which was the latest in-year information
available when the 2013/14 budget was set. The outcome of this exercise
shows that the reasons for the variances are a mixture of areas where a
planned action has been implemented, some of which could have been

reported earlier, other areas that could have been foreseen earlier and some
minor fortuitous variances.

Page 34



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

3.12

The review has identified that the reasons for the variances can be classified
into the following main themes:-

1) Grant Maximisation — utilising external funding wherever possible.

2) Year End Recharge Issues and Accounting Treatment.

3) Communication of the financial impacts of Service Commissioning and
demand levels.

4) Treatment of Vacancy Savings.

5) Difficulties and uncertainties in accurately projecting income.

Corporate Management Team has identified and agreed a range of actions to
strengthen budget management and reporting in the light of the issues
identified.

As previously reported, some of the main reasons for the movement between
Month 8 to 12 include:

e Further reduction in costs for Out of County Placements linked to
additional family placements

Further reduction in income in leisure facilities

Further improvement in Central Loans and Investment Account
Reduced expenditure on residential and domiciliary care

Additional client income in respect of Intake and Reablement
Additional grant received to support the implementation of the council
tax support scheme

It is important to note that at the time that the 2013/14 budget was set, the
significant areas of reported under and overspend at that time were taken
account of in the budget agreed by Council.

As a result of the overall outturn position an assessment has been made of
the potential future impact for the current 2013/14 financial year and also the
impact on the Council's Medium Term Financial Plan for 2014/15 and beyond
and this work will be reported to Members in due course.

As we move into detailed monitoring for the 2013/14 financial year, Service
Managers and Finance will be working together to implement these actions to
ensure that variances are reported at the earliest opportunity in the financial
year.

Finance Procedure Rules state that any Directorate overspend will be carried
forward into the following year as a first call on the budget for that year. In
view of the overall financial position it is recommended on this occasion that
the Lifelong Learning overspend of £0.033m is met from overall balances and
not carried forward.

Page 35



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

BRIEF OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR

The early projections as at Month 3 for the Council Fund was an overspend of
£1.053m which was mainly due to pressures within Lifelong Learning
including Leisure Services, Schools related, Service Units and Facilities.

At this stage, Cabinet also allocated an amount of £0.361m from contingency
reserve as a one-off investment for the purpose of supporting the new leisure
facilities in their first year of operation.

In view of the projected overspend, Management committed to find
opportunities to generate efficiencies with the intention of gaining a positive
outturn on the 2012/13 projected outturn.

At Month 8 a significant improvement of £0.754m was reported in the
projected under spend on Out of County Placements. This movement
reflected the overall impact of a number of factors which included smarter
procurement from the continued involvement of Commercial and Clinical
Solutions, and a reduced numbers of placements which had been influenced
by the development of in-county provision from foster care and within special
schools.

At Month 8 members were also notified of a potential pressure due to the
triggering of the Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) scheme of arrangement
and a provision of £0.770m was set aside for this purpose from the
Contingency Reserve.

In March 2013 the County encountered a spell of severe weather which
resulted in costs being incurred during the operational phase of the incident
totalling £0.629m and estimated costs for the recovery phase of £0.621m. The
maijority of these costs were incurred within the Environment Directorate and
the Council utilised the Winter Maintenance Reserve to offset £0.245m of
these costs with the remainder of the total cost being met from the
Contingency reserve.

The latter part of the year resulted in a significant positive movement in the
variance due to a mixture of planned activities and unforeseen issues as
detailed earlier in this report.

ACHIEVEMENT OF EFFICIENCIES

The 2012/13 budget contained £4.721m of specific efficiencies. Members
have previously requested an update on the achievement of these efficiencies
to be reported within the outturn report and the table below provides this
information by directorate:-

Page 36



3.21

3.22

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

Value of Value of (Under) Over
Directorate Budgeted Actual Achievement

Efficiency Efficiency

£m £m £m

Community Services 0.807 1.932 1.125
Environment 1.509 1.509 Nil
Lifelong Learning 0.604 1.506 0.902
Corporate Services 1.801 1.979 0.178
Total 4.721 6.926 2.205

The main reason for the over achievement is in relation to increased
efficiencies in relation to Out of County Placements within Community
Services (£0.844m) and Lifelong Learning (£0.902m). The 2013/14 budget
has been reduced to reflect the reduced costs at the time the budget was set
within this area, although this service area continues to be volatile and will be
closely monitored.

Appendix 9 provides further analysis for all efficiencies by Directorate. It is
important to note that the impact of this analysis has already been included in
the final outtumn figures.

NON STANDARD INFLATION

The 2012/13 budget included amounts for non-standard inflation for elements
where costs were likely to increase by more than the standard rate of inflation.
During the year these amounts have been held centrally until the additional
requirement could be demonstrated. The final position in relation to these
elements is detailed below:-

e £0.196m in respect of Fuel which has been fully allocated.

e £0.133m in respect of food which has been fully allocated.

e £0.078m in respect of Energy for Street Lighting of which £0.0556m was
not allocated and forms part of the underspend within central and
corporate.

e £0.300m in respect of Energy of which £0.017m was not allocated and
forms part of the underspend within central and corporate.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2011/12 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 10" July showed
unearmarked reserves at 31% March 2012 (above the base level of £5.476m)
of £0.992m, after taking into accounts commitments in 2012/13:

e Use of £0.973m to meet one off/time limited costs
¢ Ringfencing of £1.500m to support Organisational Change costs

Page 37



5.02

5.03

5.04

5.056

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

Appendix 7 details the movements to date on unearmarked reserves and the
level of contingency sum available. As a result of these movements the final
level of Contingency Reserve is £3.409m.

In Month 11 it was reported that the £0.245m held in the Winter Maintenance
Reserve had been utilised to fund the severe weather costs in 2012/13. It is
recommended that £0.250m is allocated from the contingency reserve in
2013/14 to provide funding in this specific reserve for future years to replace
the funding utilised.

The MTFP considered by Cabinet on 18" June identified an estimated funding
shortfall of £8.5m for 2014/15 rising to £28.5m by 2018/19, but that with the
inclusion of a number of variables and broad assumptions this could rise to
over £10m in 2014/15 and £40m over the 5 year period. As stated in that
report work is continuing over the summer period on the MTFP and to develop
the budget strategy for 2014/15 and an updated MTFP will be reported in
October.

It is recommended that the £3.159m held in the contingency reserve is held at
this stage and its use considered within the context of the MTFP and 2014/15
budget strategy as a key strategic decision.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 21% February 2012, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2012/13 of £26.671m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £0.867m, which at 3.25% of total expenditure satisfied the prudent
approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2011/12 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 10" July 2012 showed a
closing balance at the end of 2011/12 of £1.857m, which was £0.753m more
than when the 2012/13 budget was set. This had the effect of increasing the
closing balance for 2011/12 by the same amount.

The Final Outturn for the HRA is an underspend of £1.076m (£1.047m at
month 12) which results in a final closing balance (subject to audit) at 31st
March 2013 of £1.931m which at 6.98% of the total expenditure exceeds the
recommended minimum level of 3%.

BRIEF OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR

The 2012/13 HRA budget provided a total revenue contribution of £4.692m
towards the funding of capital expenditure (CERA). During the year, the
following increases were approved to meet increased revenue expenditure:-

e On vacant properties: £0.250m was recommended for reallocation in
the Month 4 Monitoring Report. This was approved by Cabinet.

e £0.250m was allocated in the Month 6 Monitoring report through
delegated powers. This was to fund DFG's, Bathrooms and planned
other works.

Page 38



6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

e A further £0.250m was allocated in the Month 9 Monitoring Report
though delegated powers. This was for external refurbishment works
and a programme of ventilation fans.

As detailed in this report, the final position is a surplus of £1.931m. The
Council is required to keep £1.070m balance to meet the 3% reserve
recommended on the HRA. The remaining balance of £0.861m is proposed
to be utilised in the following way; £0.250m put aside for single status,
£0.130m for additional void revenue works, £0.200m carried forward for
maisonettes (full budget not needed in 12/13) and redundancy costs
(restructures planned in 12/13 delayed to 13/14). The remaining balance will
be invested in meeting Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS).

The continued improvement in the financial management of the HRA during
2012/13 has helped to enable delivery of the following service developments
and improvements:

¢ Improved performance on non urgent repairs.

e |Improved empty property periods.

e Increased investment in capital improvements from CERA towards
achieving an earlier deadline to meet WHQS.

e Additional staff resource in priority areas to meet tenant promises
detailed in the Choices document.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to :-

a) Note the overall report

b) Note the Council Fund contingency sum as at 31% March 2013
(paragraph 5.02)

c) Note the final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account
(paragraph 6.03)

d) Approve that the overspend in Lifelong Learning be met from overall
balances and not carried forward as required by finance procedure
rules.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 to 6.00 of the report.

ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

None.

10.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

10.01

None.

Page 39



11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 12 — Appendix 1
Council Fund Variances — Appendices 2 — 6

Council Fund Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 8

Achievement of Efficiencies — Appendix 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: (01352) 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 40



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2012/13

v . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
i1 Y Fflint
F!{p}?b}l‘e Budget Monitoring (Outturn

Summary of Movement from Month 12

Month 12

Out of County Ringfenced Budget
Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance

£m

(1.753)
(1.997)
(0.563)

Appendix 1

£m

Variance as per Directorate Returns

Outturn

Out of County Ringfenced Budget
Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance

(1.746)
(2.037)
(0.446)

(4.313)

Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Community Services

Reablement Service (Intake and Reablement) - due to an adjustment necessary to
bring projected pay costs in-line with actual costs.

e Resource and Regulated Service (Disability Service) - due to a combination of the
transfer of costs (£0.031m) to Administrative Support (Disability Services), where they
should have been charged, and a reduction (£0.020m) to overall projected pay costs
to bring in-line with actual costs.

e Vulnerable Adults and Disability Service (Disability Service) - relates to the transfer of
costs to Administrative Support (Disability Services) where they should have been
charged.

e Administrative Support ( Disability Services) - as noted above against Resource and
Regulated Services and Vulnerable Adults and Disability Sevices where costs have
been transferred into this service (£0.078m) that were previously shown against other
services.

e Business Systems (Development & Resources) - due to the transfer of costs
(£0.045m) to Management and Support.

e Other Residential (Children's Services) - due to capital funding being charged against
revenue rather than the use of carried forward balances as previously projected.

* Management & Support (Development & Resources) - due to a combination of costs
being transferred from Business System (£0.045m) and additional costs relating to
year end recharges from Corporate Services (£0.012m) for insurance and courier
costs and other small amount (£0.002m).

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

(0.026)

(0.051)

(0.047)

0.078

(0.045)

0.038

0.059

(0.063)

(3.229)

0.084

Page 41

(0.057)



Environment
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Lifelong Learning
Out of County Pooled Budget

The reduction to the Out of County underspend (£0.027m) relates to one additional placement
than previously assumed.

Corporate Services
e Minor Variances

Central and Corporate Finance
® Central Loans & Investment Account (CLIA) - reduced impact of Landsbanki loans
impairment provision (-£0.066m), other minor variances £0.003m.

® Central Service recharges - reduced allocations to former trading areas and HRA

® Other Minor Variances

Total changes

Page 42

Appendix 1

0.013
0.013
0.027
0.027
(0.016)
(0.016)
(0.063)
0.155
0.025
0.117
0.084



-gjeldosdde se sjabpnq

ubjeal pue sawwesbosd (YSS1)
S}INPY J0} SAOIAISS [B100S
Buiwuoysuel] jo uona|dwod
Buipuad mainal Japun daay|
‘Jauped ino Aq passjunosua
sydom Buipjing ui sAejap

0} anp uasue sey pue Buiunosl
uou pue Jo-auo s| aJe)

"saoueleA

J3|[ews SNOLEA JO |ejO} Jau 3y} SI WEE0 03
Jo @oueleq ay] ‘Juswubijeas ySS1 JO

Med se passalppe a4 ||IM Ydiym wosL 03
jo yoddng |euoISSaj0.id UIyIm puadsiano
pajoaloid e AqQ }Jasyo ase spuadsiapun
a@say] }sod Juedea e 0} anp Wey0'03
Juadsiapun si || Buial pue ‘821AIeS ay)
UIyM SaiouedeA 0} anp Ajjlsow ‘we90’ 03
Aq Buipuadsiapun s| saoinIeg Aeq
‘Buapusl-al pue manal

Hodsuedy ay) Buimojjo} syebpng ay) ubijes.
0} #1/£10¢ Ul us)euspun aq 0} }I0M

0] sejejal W L Z'03 Jo puadsiapun uy
‘siapinod aied 10j09s

juapuadapul pue jusws|geal Jo asn
Jayealb pue Aiaalep a21ales 0) sabueyo
woJ} S)sod Aed paonpal 0} anp w//.g'03
Jo puadsiapun aje) Aseljioiwog 8snoy-u|
‘uona|dwod

Joj awelawy) 0} anNp w8z 03 JO swayos

(yuswajqeay pue
ayeju|) saoInILg
paje|nbay

esxJ jsulebe puadsiapun ay) [ mau uo puadsiapun pajosloid aied enx3((028°0) (028°0) 99¢'G 9¢2'9 pue s22.1n0say
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Hiuon unpn abpn

alinbay uonoy aoueuep Jofepy jo asne) jsen aouelep Hno Joopng R TP VETS
pail : : . 2 pajosiold | pasinay i
aouelep
(uwinynQ) €1/Z10Z Buliojiuol 196png
¢ XIAN3ddV SAJIANYIS ALINNWINOD

Page 43



"¥1/€10¢ Buunp passaippe aq
|IIM sy “Buipuny pasea.ou Joy

juswaJinbal Bujobuo ue aq |Im
alay) j1ey) pabpamouoe si )l

S3IDOMIN 2y} wouj uawdinba
Jo} puewsap Buiseasou| 0} anQg

‘awwelsboud (YsSS1)
S)NPY JO} SAJINIBS [B100S
Buiwioysuel] jo uopnajdwod

"uININO Yum aul|

ul Buiq o} Aiessaoau Aed uo yuswisnipe
ue 0} @np SI Z| Yuow wouj JuswaAow
ay] "AyAnoe pasealoul 0} anp saseyaind
juswdinba |enuassa Joj WO90'03

40 (S3IDM3N) 82IAIeg Juswdinb3
Alunwwo) ssiep JN @y} 0} uonnqguiuoo
[euoiIppe Ue S| 821AJ8S SIY) JOo puads ay)
ulyim papnjau| ‘wo Lo 03 bullielo) sjsoo
Hodsued) pue sasiwaud ul 9sealoul ue
pue wig0’'03 JOo swodul yjesaH jeuonippe
yim Jayyeboy sjuawijulodde seak ped pue
1s0d JuedeA ‘Je)s 8Je39WOH JO ash ay)

(yjuswa|geay pue
ayeju|) aoInIes

Buipuad mairal Jopun dasy| o) anp (wz20°03) peonpas aaey sisod Aed((1200)  [(L60°0) €220 0.£0 Juswa|qesay
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuon 6on

alinbay uonoy aoueuep Jolel jo asne) ise aouellep UL jonpnd 99IAI9S
pa! : : : : pajoalold | pasinay :
aoueliep
(uinnQ) €1/210Z Buoyiuop 3a6png
Z XION3ddV S3DIAY3S ALINNINWOD

Page 44



‘paoadxa uey) oeduw sajealb
pey aAey yolym pue asljiqels
0} 194 S yaiym jo 1oedwi ay)
VSSL yim paonpodul Aiaaliap
ao1n9s Ul sabueyo ay) Jo
1oedwi ay) BuiAjnuenb s) Jeak
SIY} @2IAISS SIY} UIYIM SuINiNo
Bunoaloid Aynoiyip Jejnoed

"¥1/€10¢ 10} Uaxeuapun [|im
siy] "swes) A}|eo0o| 8y jo ued
se Buiuiewsa. aoinias Adesay |

[euonednaa( ayy Ajuo yym
‘BuipeaH saolnIag Ajigesiq
ay) Japun au|| sjeledss

B WO} |IIM YSS 1 Jo sebels
Auea auy) je s}ebpnq wes)
Ajjeoso| ay) jo ped se papn|oul
sjusws|d |SAd @4} jo Jsow jeuj}
papioap uaaq sey JI ‘SaoIAI8S
jo uonesjuebioad pajielap ay)
Buunp pue yssl jo | aseyd

"'YSS.1 woly Aianlap

2oI1nJ9s Ul sabueyd o} anp w003

Aq Juadsiano - 9oIAIBG JuBWa|qeay <
‘AIanljap 9oIAISeS

ul siseydwsa ul 8bueys e o} anp woQL'03
Aquadsiapun - aie) Aeq paseyaind <
S90IAIaS 9)doad 19p|O

(seoueuen |lews Jayjo

Aq 19syo poddns paseyodind uo woy0 03
pue s}s00 Buiyels woy0 03) W.L0 03

Aq juadsiapun - Adelay] |euonednasQ <
‘puewap Buinupuod Bunosjal WG| 03
Jo puadsiano - suonejdepy JOUl <
‘We0y 03 Jo puadsiapun

- 9JeD) |enuapIsay paseyaind <
‘sabeyoed

21ed Jua.nd Jo jJoedw ay) 0} anp wLZo'03
JO puadsiano - aled aWoH paseyaind <

jes[iano
ponuuo)

(senijed0)

Buimoljo4 "mainal Japun dasy saoI1AIaS ANNgesiq eaisAud|(1L16°0)  |(LLS0)  [616'SL 06¥°91 swesa | A)||eoo]
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
U3UoW winyn abpn

alinbay uonoy aosueue Jofey jo asne) )se aoueLiep INRNO 190png 9JIA19G
pail : * : : pajosiold | pasinay :
aoueLieA
(winynQ) €1/210z Buliojuol 3ebpng
Z XION3ddV SIJIAYIS ALINNWWOD

Page 45



"S9OUBLIBA J9||BWS JO JAqWNU B JO

dn spew s| w| 00’03 Jo aoue|jeq jau a8y |
"S3I0UBORA JE)S 0} anp Ajsow wzZs0 03

Jo puadsiapun - yodng [BUOISS8)0Id <
‘w1003 Jo uoangLIuod

jualjo pajabpnqun pue weLo 03 Jo
uolsinoid 831AIS paodnpal 0} anp WezZo 03
Jo puadsJapun - spag aJe) ajeIpausiu| <
‘sabeyoed aied Juauind

$109)481 YoIym wigg L 03 Aq Juadsiapun

- aJe) |enuapISay paseydind <
‘sabeyoed aied juauino Bunosyels wgL0'03F
Aq juadsJiano - aie) awWoH paseyaind <
Panunuod - S3JIAI8S 9|d6ad 19p|0

abed snoinaid

wioJj panupuo)

(saneoo)
swea| A)eoo

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuol
paiinbay uonoy aoueuep Jofey jo asned )sen] aouelep a0 196png 90IAI9S
: ; : 3 > pajosfold | pasinay -
aouelep
(winpnE) £1/21.0Z Burioyuo 386png
Z XION3ddVY S3DIAYIS ALINNWWOD

Page 46



uonisuel] ayj Ypm sienplaipul
Buipsebal uonewJojul

JO MaInaJ By} Joj doe|d

ul aJe syuawabuelle pasinay
v/ uo oedwi [epuajod Aue

‘pabieyd uasq aney

pinoys Asy} a1aym (saoinles Ajjiqesiq)
yoddng aAlessiuIWpY 0} S}S09 JO Jajsued)
ay) s}09|jad ZL Yuow aouls JusWaAoW
ay] -eoInIes e ul pabebua joA jou aaey
OUM S|ENPIAIPUI JO JBQWINU B OS|e pue
‘Joedw [elouBUl By} UO uoljoNpal e se
Bune|suel) spaau pasiAal Y)IM s|enplAlpul
yum 1ayjabo) ‘sjuswade|d [eusaixa

Jo peajsul pasnh bBuleq sadlAI9s asnoy

-ul 0} anp sbBuines payuapl sey yolym
S92IAJSS UIY)IM S[ENPIAIPUL JO Juawaoe|d
[enjOB 8y} W.Ijuod 0} uayeHapun

(CERIVELS

Aigesiqg)
SERIIVETS

Ayigesiqg pue

Ajuapi 0} Aemuapun si SO usaq sey astosexa Juealjiubis v|(¥65°0)  [(L¥9°0)  |8¥0°L 6891 SHNPY S[qeIBUINA
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yyjuo 6
alinbay uonoy aoueuep Jolepy jo asned iseT aosuelep wnBNo 190png 92IA138
pait : ; : : pajoaloid | pasinay .
aouelIeA
(unpnQE) £1/21 02 Buioyuo 386png
Z XIaN3ddVY S3DIAYIS ALINNNINOD

Page 47



“Jua W WWOoD

JOAO Ue 0} anp s)s09 Aed ||eJono

0} (wQZz0 03) uononpal e pue ‘pabieyo
uaaq aAeY pnoys Aay) aJeym ‘(seolnieg
Aiqesig) yoddng aAnessiuIWpY

0] (W £0°03) SIs092 jo Jajsuel

3y} JO uoieuIqWOoI B S}o9|jal Z| Yluow
20UIS JuaWaAOW 3y "w/Z003 Aq |ej0)

ul Buipuadsiapun si (40j0ag juepuadapui
pue asnoy-uj) buiai] papoddng “sjoelju0D
Jo Builepuajal ay) Bumojjoy pajoadxe
uey) Jamo| wgy0’'03F Buiaq s}soo podsuel)
JuSI0 [eul 8y} 0} anp saniunuoddQ

YO UIYIM W/ G0"0F JO puadsiapun

(seoInieS
Ayigesiq)
S32IAI8S
pajeinbay

ue o} anp Ajsow si puadssepun ayl [(820°0)  [(6zL'0)  [0S8°CL 6.6°CL pue 80Inosay
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuol 6
alinbayj uonoy aoueleA Jofepy jo asne) iseT aoueleA L) 190png 92IAI8S
pail : : b : pajoafoud | pasinay :
aoueLieA
(wininQ) £1/210Z Bunoyuo 136png
Z XION3ddV S3DIAYIS ALINNWIWOD

Page 48



‘sjunowe

|lews snoLeA jo dn apeuw s| soueleq

9y 'Se9IAIaS J19Y)0 Jsuiebe umoys
Aisnoinaad asam jey) (wg/0 03) 9o1nues
SIY} Ojul palidjsuel) uaaq aAeY S)S0d
$80I1A9g Ajl|Iqes!q pue s)NpY 9|qeIaUINA
pue sadinIag pajeinbay pue 824nosay
Jsurebe anoqe pajou sy v 1L/€1L02

piw un paja|dwod aq 0} pajoadxe

MOU JOU S| Ydlym pue uayepuapun bulaq
S| SIY} punoJe ssa20.d ay) JO MaIABI Y/
‘ue|d a4eo ay) Buipuny Joy sayljigiIsuodsal
aAljoadsal Jo malnal e Bumoy|oy

‘68 sue|d aJeo Jenoiyed jo Buipuny
uieaH ul sjjejuoys bunaaw Joj si ey

(s@o1n188

Aipgesiq)
uoddng

‘maInal sapun daa)y|| wg Lz 03 Jo 196pnq e s eale siyy uyM|[(62L°0)  [(LOL'0)  [(209L) (905°1L) aAlessIuIWpY
(w3z) (w3) (w3) (w3)
ﬁo.::nvm uono aouelie Jofe O ashne _._uMMS_ aoueue uinyno umm—u:m 9JIAIO
inbay uonoy ueA Jofep o) Ise eA pejoofolg | pesiney Ineg
a0ueLIieA
(uinpnE) £1/210Z Bunoyuo 186png
Z XIAN3ddV SIDINYIS ALINNWINOD

Page 49



‘siaquinu
Ju91|2 Ul 8seasou [enusjod

"90IAIBS 3Y)

UIY}IM SBOUBLIBA |[BWS SNOLIEBA JO dn apew
puadsiano Jau e S| 600°03F JO aoueleq 8y L
"aNIIN yim Joefoud e Jo pels pakejap ay)
0} aNp WZE0 03 Jo puadsiapun :sjuels) <
‘wogo'03

Jo puadsiano ue :poddng [euoissajold <
W0 03 Jo sadinles pue salddns

uo puadsiano ue Aq jasyo (Wss0'03)

Aed Asow Wz 03 Jo puadsiapun
:JuswAojdwg pue uonedndd <
"JusWISSasseal

e Buimoj|oy pabieyd a1am yoiym we L1003
sa)el Ssaulsng pajepyoeq Jo }1s00 ay) Aq
19sy0 aABa| Ajuldjew pue SjuswpuooI9s
Aielsodwa) 0} anp wzeo 03 Aed

uo spuadsiapun Asow Bueq w/zo'03
JO puadsJapun :wea} poddng aAIsusiu| <
‘sabeyoed aied jualnd Bunosyyal

‘WZe L 03 Jo puadsiapun :92IAIS

alen Aieljloiwoq pue |[enuapIsay <

:JO |BJO} BAEBINWIWND

(peaH (eluay)

3y} 0} anp malAal Japun doay| ay} sI umoys puadsiapun ay] [(9/1°0) (9/1°0) /Gl L cC6’L saoInleg poddng
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
YjuoN
paJinbay uonoy aoueuep Jolepy jo asne) IseT] aoueleA ) 19bpng 9JIAISS
- ; : : : pajoafoid | pasinay >
aoueleA

(winpnE) £1/21 0z Buloyuo 396png

¢ XIAN3ddVv S3JIAY3S ALINNINNOD

Page 50



"SUONjBLIBA [|ewsS JO Jaquinu
B 0} aNp S| Z| Yjuow woJj Juswarowl
3y "92IAJ9S BY) UIYIM JoW aJe S}S0D
ay) ‘Aousioe Bulobuo ue Bunelsauab
J0U 3Jojaiay) pue ‘(juelo) |evads
BuyiopA Julor) Buipuny juelb Jo uonessao
ay} 0} anp Ajjsow aJe salouepunpal
asay} sy "aJnjonuisal e Buimoj|o) 92IAl9S
ay) uo Buijje; Yeys aauy) 1o Wz 03 (seainosay
JO sJs09 pajefas Aouepunpal Jo-auo 0} 9 JuawdojaAaq)
‘Bunosl JoN| enp Ajulew s| w/g|"03F JO puadsiano 8yl (/910 ¢LL’0 410" 086°0 yjieaH pooo
‘umouyun aJe sajep
Je)s Jo s)so09 |enuajod abeys
slyp Je ybnoupje sjyualo yjjeaH -sabeyoed e 0} sabueyo (Aungesig
|EJUSIN [BUONIPPE JO SUOREDIIPUl| 15,16 swios yym Joyiebo) | L0Z Jequadaq Buiusea)
Aues ase aioy) se mou BULNpP PoUSLIWIOD JBY) JOSN S2IAISS sjebpng
10} PRSSILUSIP PUE POISPISUOO| oy e yo orduul Jeak (Iny Y} SIOBYSI SIYLIZLLO  [2LL'0  [8/6°0 99v°0 paouaybuny
u2a( Sey SadIAISS OM)
ay} usamyaq }abpnq bBuiubije
-al jo Aypqissod ay| ‘sunoo
JO uoslid woJj ad1ou poys je
SpUBLWISP pUB S18quinu Judlfo
ur sabueyd o) anp AJNE|oA (pesH
|enuajod - mainal Japun doay| '€1/¢l0c [ejusy) s1ebpng
Joy sabexoed aieo Juaund s18aY|(0Z1'0)  [(22L'0)  |64L0 10€°0 paouajbury
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Hilow wnyno 3abpng
paiinbay uonoy aouellep Jofey jJo asned ysen aJueleA pejosfoid | pesiney 92I1A198
aouelieA ’ :
(uinpnQ) £1/210Z Bunojuo 3a6png
¢ XIAN3ddV S3JIAY3S ALINNWINOD

Page 51



oL

"S0UBLIBA J9||BWS JO JAJWNU B JO
dn apew si (wzp0'03) @ouejeq ay] "s}soo
JalINoo pue aduelnsul Joj (WZL0'03)
saoIAleg ajelodio) woly sabieyoal
pua Jeak 0} bupejal sysoo |euonippe (saounosay
pue (WG 03F) WalsAg ssauisng wodj » Juawdojenaq)
padiajsuel) Bulaq s}sod Jo uoleuIquiod Hoddng
B 0} 8np s| eaJe siy} Ul puadsono ay1 (9000 G900 L¥9°0 2850 ® Juawabeuep
‘Woddng pue juswabeuepy 0} (WSO 03)
S]S02 JO J3jsuel) ay) o} anp si gL
4luOW WO} JUSWSAOW 3Y] "Sjueynsuod (s@oinosay
111slieoads uo puads pajoadxe 9 Juawdojaaaq)
uey) Jamoj pue sjsod juedea 0} anp swa)sAg
Apsow si eale siy} ulyym puadsiepun 8y |(zgL'0)  |(Zgz'0)  |/¥0'L V.21 ssaulsng
(s@oinosay
2 Juawdojanaq)
awoou|
‘paAladal awoaul Aojjod - S9JINIBS
Buibieyo [enjoe sy} sjoayas wnpno ayL((850°0)  |(850°0)  |(69S°1) (L1S)) ssauisng
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuoy
paiinbay uonoy aosueuep Jofepy jJo asned ise aoueleA pannno 1ebpng R TTVETS
- * : : : pajoafoild | pasinay :
aoueleA
(uinnQ) €1/Z10Z Buioyiuop 3o6png
¢ XIAN3ddV S3JIAYU3S ALINNNINOD

Page 52



Ll

(W zo'03) pua seak je aoe(d

%00} jey} ajelo}oauliq Buluiea Buofsy ay)
0} pue Agq apeuw juelb }sii4 saljiwe ay} o}
pajejal s)S09 Jo J9jsuel) pajedpljueun ue

(sooinieg
ualip|iyQ) wea |

0} 8Np S Z| YJuow wouj Juswasow ay1|000°0 (1200) |ovE0 19€°0 BuipuaylO YINoA
"(W200°03) Sis0d
Aed ul uononpau e 0} anp si | yjuow
wioJ} JuawaAow ay] “eale siy) Uiyym (saomiag
Ayaioe paonpai o} anp si puadssepun 84 |(820'0)  |(G€0'0)  |080°0 GLL'0 uaJpliyy) sjuels
‘pajedionue usaq pey se saouejeq
wioJ) uey) Jayield junodde anuaAal
ay} wouy apew buiaq sylom |ejided
Jo Buipuny ayj 0} sajejal g yluow wodj
‘sabieyd podsuedy o0} Bunelal JuswIBAOW a3y "s||Iq |eul} syo8jjal mou (saomiag
S]S0J |euonippe J0} _m_ucmuoa pue Umuma_o_ucm ueyj Jaje| mc_mn_ BJsoly cmL_U__cOv
ay) 0} anp mainal Japun dasyj( jo Buiuado sy} o} sajejel puadsiapun ayL(090°0)  |(220'0)  |F0SO 9250 [ERUSPISY JBYIO
‘sJaled
ay} Joj asuemo|je Bujobuo ue joee
"S9I0USIo19 A|geueAul yoiym siapJlo diysueipiens)
a|qissod pue bujuued [eloadg pue adouapIsay 10} SI9pIo
aJniny WJOUI |[IM YdIym HNO9 Jo Jaqwnu Buiseasoul ay) 0} anp (s@o1n18S
JO BWO2IN0 a9y} paduaWwwWod os|e sl }| "92IAIaS By} ulypm sjuawade|d s,uaJp|iyo)
sey wea | juswade|d aJed 18)s0} JO Joaquinu ay)] ul asea.dul juawade|d
Ajlwe ay} Jo malnal Y| ue Jo jnsal e se Ajujew si puadsiano ay] [1L.9€°0 L9€0 €612 2€8°L Alwe4
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuop
pasinbay uonoy aoueuep Jofep Jo asne) jseT aouelIeA unpno 196png 99I1A19S
3 : : : : pajoafoid | pasinay :
ouelIeA
(wnpnQE) €£1/210Z Buliojuop 3abpng
Z XION3ddV S3DIAYIS ALINNWWNOD

Page 53



cl

‘g|qissod

alJoym wnwiuiw e o} ydoy
s| Buipuads saoinIag ualp|Iyd
uIyym puadsiano ayy 0} ang

‘Slosn 9JIAISS

OM} 9S8y} punoJe solioads
8y} OJul MaIAal e pajebisul
sey (UaJp|IyD) 2018 Jo
peaH ay] ‘Malral Japun daayy

:9Je SIJ0)NQUIU0d ulew ay|

‘21 Yuow woJj wozo 03 JO asealoul ue
SI YoIym w /80 03 Aq Juadsiapun ||elanQ
EERNEEEY

‘L 1 Yyuow je pauodal

1ey) 0} puadsiapun pasnpai Apybils

e sI yoiym wgy0 03 Aq Buipuadsispun
ale wea| uonuanidu| Ajlwe <
"wy90 03 Aed yejs pue weel 03
sjuswAed jualo 0} anp Ajpsow s yaiym
W/ /2 03 J0 puadsiano (LSYAD) weay
Woddng jJuaosajopy BunoA pue ualp|iyo <
‘Aed yels uiyym spuadsispun

Aq 19510 s}s02 Aouabe o0} anp puadsiano
W6l L°0F wea | jusawssassy pue AinQg <
:2Je s10}NquUIU0d

ulely "z yuow wolj abueyo ou ‘wgye 03
Aqg Buipuadsiano s| yJompjald |[e4anQ
SHomplald

|esaua9 pue (sql0)

20198 Ajljiqesiq pajelbaju| s,uaipiiyd
‘S90JN0SaYy ‘YJompjald Jo Buisudwod

ea.e xa|dwod e s| yjoddng |euoissajoid

Eve0

08¢0

Jes[I9A0
panunuod

(seoniag
s,ua1plyd)
poddng

6.9°G 62¥'S |euolssajold

pasinbay uonoy

aoueleA Jofey jJo asne)

(w3)
yuow
ise

aoueleA

(w3)

aoueLieA

(w3)

Jobpng
pasIAgy

(w3z)

wnyno

pajosloid aAMes

¢ XION3ddV

S3JIAY3S ALINNWNOD

(uinNyNQ) £1/Z1L0Z Bunoyiuop yobpng

Page 54



€l

‘pajoaloid sem

Jeym 0} (w/200°03) sysoo Aed |euonippe

0] anp SI Z| Yjuow wodj JuswaAow ay |
"S9OUBLIBA JB||BWS JO JAJWNU B JO 3peuw S|
W 0003 Jo @ouejeq ay] 9oIAIaS Jayjoue
0} pabieyo A|Buoim ‘Aed yejs jsuiebe
MaInay Juepuadapu| pue Buipienbajes
Ul W0 03 4o aseasoul ue Aq

Josyo wzL 1 03 19bpnq isii4 uaipiiyd ey
Jo puads paonpaJ yonw e s| puadsiapun
ayj Jo uonnquuod ulew ayyl ‘w/g8'03

Jo puadsiapun pajoafoid |[BJOAQ [BIBURD
'asn paseaJoul 0} anp

280°03 J0 puadsiano sjusawAed 10a.4ig <
"'S@0UBLIBA J3|[BWS J9Y)0

Aq19si0 WQL0'03 SiuawAed sajsuel)

pue wez0'03 Aed 0} anp Apsow wQED 03
Buipuadsiapun wes] sailjigesiqg <
‘wgOO 03 jo saseyound

swdinba paonpau o} anp Apsow
We0003F Jo puadsiopun O s,uaIpiiyd <
‘Wyy0'03

Aq Buipuadsiano ale gD |1Be4an0 :SAID
‘sjuswAed paosnpal 0} anp w/ 1003
puadsiapun adineg uondopy S8epn N <
"wog0"03 Aed 0} anp Apsow weeo 03

Jo puadsiapun wea| poddng Ajlwe4 <

abed snojnseid
wioJj penupiuod

(seonies
s,uaJpliyd)
poddng
|[euoissajoid

(w3z) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuopn 6on
alinbay uonoy aoueue Jofep jo asned jseT] aoueLieA o L0 19bpng 90IAI0S
pail g : - ; pajosfold | pasinay )
aouelBA
(wnyNO) £1/Z1L0Z Bulionuop y@bpng
Z XIaN3ddv SIIIAHIS ALINNWNOD

Page 55



14

"SB0INO0S [BUIBIXS WO} (seoinies
awuweJboud sy 0} ul pasans| buleq |eydes BuisnoH) sjuels
leuonippe o} anp papaaoxa jabie) swoou||(190°0)  |(#90°0)  |(181°0) (£11°0) uojeAousy

"aJnynj ayy ul [CERINER

sjun uonepowodde Aselodwa) ‘puUSJ) UM 3Ul| Ul pasIAal pue BuisnoH)

Jayuny Joj pasinbas aq [m uayepapun puads pajoadxa Jo maINaY (€L 0) (ev10) GHE0 8810 SSQUSSO|9WOoH
1e6pnq |ny ay} ey} suonoafoid
pue joedwi Wi0Joy aJiejsapn
0} anp ¢ /€L Ul suopejuasald

ul asu pajedionue "Jeak [eroueuy (seolniag

0} enp BuLINoal uou pue|  SIY} SJIAISS BU} UO puewap pajedionue BuisnoH) 196png

}JO BUQ "M3IABJ Japun dosy) ay) Jo uonisod juauno spayal sIYL|(¥SL'0)  [(PSL'0)  |€2e0 11€0 paouaj-6ury
‘pajieme
ale s|ie}ap Jayun4 ‘payjuenb
uaaq 194 jou sey syabpng
alen Buinea] pue Bulieyso4
S9JIAISS UaIp|IYD 8y} uo
sabueyd asay} Jo Joedw sy |
‘Bunosw xau
ay} je slojoalip oM} 8y} Aq yo
ubis saJinba. j0afoad asnoy ui

ay| "pamalnal 8q 0} panuiuod "S)oBJJU0D JO uonenobau-al Buimo)|oy (seoniag

[Im pue 109foid sajepp sJopinoid o} sjuswAed ul suononpal s,uaJpliyo)

UUON B mou s| sjuawaoeld umouy s}o9|jal sIyl "€10Z Yosen 1obpng pajood

1502 yb1y Jo snoojay] | nun dn sjuswaoe|d Buysixe Josyal s}sod|(y28'0)  |(k¥8'0) (298¢ LLL'E Aunod Jo o

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuon
paiinbay uonoy aoueueA Jofey jJo asned }se aoueleA B0 19bpng L TNVETS
< a : - : pajoafoid | pasiaay :
aoueueA
(winnnQ) €1/210Z Butiojuo 1ab6png
¢ XION3ddv S3JIAYTS ALINNNNOD

Page 56



Gl

(zev'e)  |(e8v'e)  [sel'SS ¥19°8S : [ejol
"juaLnoal 8q 0} pajoadxae (eyeba.1668)
JOU JNQ M3IABI 0} BNURUOD ‘S9oUEBLIBA Joulw snoleA [(Ze0'0) (0S0°0) AR LSV saoueleA Jayj0
(CERTNER
‘pajuawa|dwi aq 0} BuisnoH)
194 ainjonss Mau ay) Joj salouedeA Aled suspJepp
‘palinbal |eaosdde aunjonssay seleles -aJnjonJisal uo paseq 1e6png|((081°0) (y81L°0) Z2s0°L ogZ’L juapisay
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuol
paJsinbay] uonoy aoueueA Jofel jo asne) jsen asueLiep i) 196png CRITNTETS
- 7 = : : pajoafoid | pasinay :
aosueLBA
(uinnnQ) €1/210z Bulio)uoly 1a6png
¢ XION3ddVv S3DINYIS ALINNNNOD

Page 57



Page 58



"L pousd e J 8liS JO djes a8y}
0] Uolje|al Ul pUS) [eUOl}EN WO} PBAISdSL S89)
jeuoissajoud 40z3F snid sbuines Aoueoep 19N

(180°0)

(180°0)

6vv 0

0€G°0

wswdojarsg
© jossy Auadold

awwelbouid yuswabeuew
Josse yum auj| ul Aiessadau
s}ebpng a)s JO Malnay

"a)s |IIH Asjieg ay 1o}

sea) [eba| pue uojelue|s) Je syiom uonepide|p
‘dD @snoH woisn) je NRY |euolippe
aoueUl 0} pasijiin usaqg sey a}is uappimulg
1A Jawuloj ay} je uoisinod Jobpng

(€20°0)

(€20°0)

2900

060°0

sbuipjoH
Auadoid
|®)

viieLoe
noybnouy pasoyuow Af@so|o

awoou| |ejual Jun desy

Awouyos|3

10} uoIljeju| piepuels UoN wody papiaold

sem Jabpng jeuolyippe Z| pouad 1y -asua)
asudisjug spisea( ie sjsod Jueoea ul sbuines
Aq pajebiiw Ajped ale sjjejuoys awoou| "8)is
uole}s Jamod uopoys ayj buiuoisiwwoossp
aouel4 ap zes) 0} ulew ay} ul

anp ‘awodu| [ejusy JuN |euisnpul Jo |lBjuoys

180°0

180°0

(86€°1L)

(64%°1)

ae 5

P

SpUN [eusnpul

a

D
)

)
D)

"SJUBWINWIWOD alnjipuadxe

pajijoidal pue awoou| |euoljippe ay} moys
sainbl) Z| pouad "sieaue jual Buipuelsino

Jo dn Mmoj|0} |n§SS2ONS BY} O} p9| Sey Sy}
‘aby pueT ayi jo Juswyuiodde ayi Buimojjo4

(Z¥0°0)

(2¥0°0)

(00Z°0)

(861°0)

saje}s]
|ednynouby

palinbay uonoy

aoueLleA Jo asne)

(w3)
Z1L pouad

aouelep

(w3)
ajuelLeA

(w3)
wnpnO

pajoafoid

(w3)
jebpng

pasiAay

CLITVETS

€ XION3ddV

LNIWNOAIANT

(unnQ) €1/21.0Z Bunoyuop yebpng



usu IJ

‘Aey
ul Jauiqen Aq panoidde se

BAIOSOY doUBUSBJUIBI JOJUIAN ‘WOE9" L3 JO S}S02 8aueUBlUIBW
oy} JO YGHZ3 pue SaAIasay| JajuIm |e]o} Ul Jnsal 0} A|ay)| s siyL “paunoul
Aouabunuo) Jo %/2/23 jJo asn usaq aABY |an} pue SWIHUSAO ‘SI0}0BIJU0D
109|Ja1 mou sainbyy wnyno 8y |  ‘uoisiacid Jes 0} Uolje|al Ul S}SOD BAISUBIXS
‘(S¥43) swsayos aoue)sissy ‘UoJel\ PUZZ BY} UO JUSAS Mous Jofew
|eioueul4 Aouabiawg ay) Japun ay) Buimoyjjo} ‘JanamoH “Arenuga4 ybnouyy

99UEJSISSE 10} JUSWUIBA0S [Buinuiuod sainpadwa)l 018z gns yum Jsyjabol (*""ju09)

ysjom 03 piq e buyjidwoos ‘mous Buipnjoul ‘Aaenuer ybnouy) Jsyjeam aoueusjuie

Ajuaung s| [1ouno) ay | Jajuim Jo pouad pauielsns e sem aldy] (6010 60L°0 G8e'L 9/2’L ISJUIMA
awayog |aAel| Aleuolssaouo)
8814 8y} Japun A wouy Bujwied

10} a|qibije sem (1¥Q) Hodsuel] aAisuodsay C

puewa( Japun paundul ainjipuadxs Ra

[aAel] AJeuoissaosuo) ‘uolippe uj ‘H1lv.L C

wloJ} pawield sem }ob6png aseq wolj paoueuy Dg-

8 0} papuajul sem Jey} sisyays pue sdojs
sng uo ainypuadxa |euolippe pue }abpng

podsuel ] |ooyaS 8y} 0} S}S00 JO uojed0||ead|(80L°0) (801°0) 8€G’| 9v9°'L uoljjepodsues |
‘Bunjiom Aepinjes Joj ajed paoueyud
ue e ajgeded swipao Buipsebal sjuepuspyy
yed Je) Joy Aed yoeq pajedionue spnjoul
os|e sainbiy ay] swwelbold soueusjuiew
paonpal e Ag }asyo Ajjerped ale pjop

pue [8MA|OH Je s|lejloys Swodul yled 1ed|/.50°0 1S0°0 Z¢80°0 G200 S)ied Je)

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
¢l pousd uinyno Jebpng
palinbay uonoy aouelBA Jo asne) eouELIEA aoueLlep pejosfoid | pesiAsy CEITVETS
€ XIONIddV LNIWNOYIANI (unyn) £1/21.02 Buncjiuop 126pNg



"1ob.e) swoou] ay) Jsuiebe |jejpoys

MGy 13 e ul pajnsal sey SiY| "S9}IS ||ypue|
yioq Je sauibug seq) ayj jo souewlsopad

ay} yum swisjqoid Aq pajoaje usaq sey sals
llupUE| 8y} 1e sec) woly uojessuab ABisua sy}
‘UoIIPPE Ul pue palnoul usaq sAeY SlSeM
ulyum uonebiysaau; bulob-uo ayy jo jnsai e
se s)so02 Buljjipoeq yeis pue Aouaby Jo suQ
‘pPaAledal

awooul BulpAoal Jo |19As| 8y} sasesloul

ng sebieyo Buiddi} pue |jipue| sanpal

AJuo J0u Yyoiym ‘sjans| Buijohoal pasealoul (-""u09)
Aq pajebniw usaqg aAeY YOIYM S}so9 co:om__omu
|euonelado [euonippe pajoadxaun uj psjnsal alse M\
9OIAISG BUB0S}9aIIS Mau By} Jo AuaAlleg|0seg 0 Gsc'0 76€'6 6€L6 lesodsiq a1sepf
[all
‘Jeal |eroueuly ay} Jnoybnouyy
[jejuiel |enuelsgns Buimoljo} syuaas Buipooy) aoueualuie|\
Buipusje yum pajeroosse Jsod buisealoul|e/0°0 €00 G8.'e zLLe sAemybiy
pajenjeAa bBuiaq
Apuauing si siiedal Buiousy pue soueles|o 9al}
‘Buiyoled ‘ssiedal sjoyjod 104 1/€ 10 OWI
}Jomjau peod ay} uo Joedw pue dn 1esjd ay)
1o} |1q Jiedal pajoaloid ayj uoiippe uj "yalep (juoo )
pugzeg 8y} aauis pasn 0/Z°c YiIm ‘sauuol aoueuajuiep
000‘cl @9 0} pajoadxs s| abesn jjes |ejo} ay | JBJUIM
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
21 pouad wnpno | j96png
paiinbay uonoy aouelleA Jo ashe) eolELEA aoueleA pejoelold | pesiey L TTVETS
€ XIONIddV 1NIWNOYIANS (uinyno) £1/21.0Z Buniojiuol 39bpng



‘padinbai aq 0} jou paujwlialep

pue pamairal a1am Jey} suolduosgns

pue (pasn uoisianoid Bujuiely auljuo)
Buluies] uonosloid eyeq 10} paunaui 3ab
JOU PIP SJUSWHLIWOD Z| pouad pajedionuy

‘YL/gL0C "Z2102 J1aquisjdss woly sadjualddy
ul s)s09 aonuaiddy uispojy| ulapoy Jo 1s09 8y} Aq Josyo uonejuswia|dul aouewlopad
ayj Joj s}abpnq ao1nes MB3IASY 92IAISS JO peaye (9N B LOS '99S » yoddng
UIIM BPEW B ||IM UOISINOId | ‘¥OS X 2) Sisod g o} Buliejas sBuineg Aoueoep((ey0)  [(EvL'0)  [1e0) voLl uswabeuep
yoddng
R JuswdolanasQg
sbuines Asejes awi} ped|(020°0) (020°0) 9120 9€2°0 SOIMS NI
O
. @
1obue} Jo fan))
$S80X8 Ul awooul 88} buluueld Aq 19so usaq mu
aney so9) |ebo| pue adlape isijeloads "9l I
sleadde Buluue|d Yyym pajeloosse s1sod 8y L (S¥0'0 G¥0°0 424" 19€°0 losuo) Buluue|d
'sjabpng
BOJE 90IAISS U] paJoajal aq (1M Yolym
s}s00 ab.eyoay 19914 Jo A18A0281 JaA0 JOUIN|(£20°0) (220°0) (8%0°0) (920°0) $92IAI9S 199]4
Aﬁcoo.. . .v
‘SpJemuo uo1}99||10D
¥1/€10Z 4o} @oe|d ul aq |m pue Bujob-uo 3lSEM\ ¥
s1 80IAIBs 9y} ssouoe s}ebpng ubijeas o} IO |[esodsiq a1sep
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aanb ¢l pousd umnyno jebpng
paiinbay uonoy aoueleA Jo asne) eoUBLIEN aosueleA pejoeloid | pesiaey CRTTVETS

€ XION3ddV

LNIWNOJYIANT

(uinpnQE) g1/z10Z Bunoliuoly yabpng



(qp]
(o)
(]
(@))
©
(eso0) [(ov0°0) LLLLE LL8'LE jjejoll
(syebaibbe)
(sL0'0)  |(000°0) Y82l S¥8ClL saoueleA I8yl0
"'Suoljipuod
Jayjeam 100d 0} anp SJUBA9 100(q Jed B
sayo}id J0opINO WoJj s||ejloys sawodul |Bjuay|¥10'0 €100 (980'0) (660°0) sjexe
"|o4u0D uoinjod Ul s|iejuoys
awooul Aq j1asyo ‘pajuswajdwi Buiag mainsy
a01M19S 8y} Jo peaye sbuines Aouedep 1eN|(€zz'0)  [(eez’0)  [olgee €YG'E uoljoajold 21gnd
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
ZlL pouad wnyno | jsbpng
palinbay uonoy aoueleA jo asne) souBLEA asueueA pojosfold | pesiasy LT VEETS
€ XION3ddV INIINOYIANI (wnpNO) £1/21.02 Bunioyuo| 1ebpng



Page 64



"Sol|1o®} fje je
aouewopad pue Aouaidiye
jeuoijesado mainal 0}
pajonpuod buiaq si YO ‘suonowold pue saoud uoissiwpe ul
saseasoul Aeuopeyul aydsap si siy} ‘siesh
"S9OIAISG BINSI9ST JO SJOYM| ¥ }SE| BU} Jano wig/ |L'0F AQ peonpal sey
8U] SSO.I0E usyeuapun|anuan ainsia apisas( e Buieys 891 wouj (uoo )
Buiaq si mairal yuel y awooul ‘a4n}oid jeuoijeu ay} yum auj| uy S92IAI9G BINsiaT]

*ZL/LL ul uonisod winyno ainsia| ay)
pajoaye A|9siaApe Os|e YoIym sanssi

39bpnq 2110)S1Y JO Jaquinu e aJe atayl A....Eq%
(w8603 Jo ainssaud) ains1a91(z86'0 ¥86°0 8L1°G v6l'¥ S82IAI9S 3Insigx ]

g

‘puadsiano 126png [l

9)eJ0]0all] 9Y} SSaippe 0} puny }00g 8y} abejisH pue
0} Juswisnipe 1eaA ul ue usaq sey a1y [(620°0) (620°0) 998°¢ G68°C ain)nyd ‘salieiqi

‘'suoln|og [edul|o

puE |BIDJaWWOY) JO JUSWSA|OAUI PANUIIUOD
3y} Yum paonpal aAey sjuswaoe|d }sod
ybiy |esonss ‘pieog juswasbeuepy Auno)d

40 INQ ay} woyy }senbai e Bumo||o4((626°0) (206°0) 1GL°) 6592 Auno) Jo InQ
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuo| ise winynQ jabpng
paJsinbay uonoy aoueleA Jo asne) souBLIEA aoueleA pojoofold | pesirey LTV ETS

€L/Z10C wnpuno
¥ XION3ddV ONINYVYIT ONOT34IT




LELOC
1o} paplwgns uaaq sey sy}
10} piq ainssaud 1o6png v

‘A|Buipioooe
pabieyoal pue psjsined
9Q 0} aJe S92INSS 9say)

Joj sebieyoal seah ul sy

‘so|diound ubisap
jeuonesiueblo Jisinay

‘'salnjony)s
Buiyeis mau pasodoud
jo Ajiqepioye jo sisAjeuy

:s)nsal
O3r Jo 1diaoa1 Buimojjo4

‘W/€0°03 JO asealoul
}S00 B Ul Bunnsas sanljiqel| [euonippe
payiuap! sey Buisuadl| OISNW JO M3IABS Y

‘papunjun si
yolym wszo 03 Ag o) sauoyds|a) ‘sbes|iw
‘aoueuSs)UiBW ‘Bulues|d 10} S82IAISS
ainsi97 Joj s}s09 Aouednd20 pasealoul
sey siy} ‘JanamoH (saoijo Aenp s,yeuuo)d
Buneoea) uoneoojal wioly Buiaes yuesyiubis
e Bupjew ui pajsisse sey spisaa(

0} JJelS S92IAI9S 84ns|oT JO uoljedolal syl

:€1/2102 Buunp paynuap!
uaaq aAey sainssaud Buimojjos aylL

*$]S02-U0 Buipn|oul WQZ L 03

0} sjunowe sIy} ‘synsal DIr 8y} pue
2injonJisay S92IAISS aINsiaT 8y} usamiaq
pasneo sAejap Buiwi} 0} anp psjebpngqun
ale Sa2IAI9S aIns|aT uyum sisod aauy |

Page 66

A«COQ. ses V
S9OIAI9S aINsia

¥ XIAN3ddV

ONINYV3T ONOT34IT

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
YIuo\ Ise] wnpno jobpng
paJlinbay uonoy aoJueLleA jo asne) souBLIEA aoueleA pejosfold | pesirey LTV ETS
€1/210Z uwINiNQ




‘sdnosbAe|d

pue sauasinu wouj Buipuny Aousbiswa
10} s)senbal Jomay ul paynsais sey Buipuny
Aujiqeulelsns jo yuswubijeas ay| "buusied

pue |aAeJ} ‘Buikdooojoyd Buipnjoul uonisod (***"u09)

JeaA ul ||esaA0 By} JSISSe 0} painoses BTV ETS

usaq aAeY wgLZ 03 JO salouaioly] Juswanosdw)

sieap Ape3|(250°0) (9¥0°0) 880°L1 vEL'LL |00YdS

sjebpng

0000 0000 8L0'8L 8L0'8L s|jooyogs pajebsjag

©

]

"¥1/€ 10 404 aunyipuadxa w

UO S|0J}U0D SJ0W 9ONPOLAUI o

0} pajedionue uey) Joles
dzd uswajdwi o) 6uidoy

os|e ale app ‘Ajosoo| sejndod alow w029 SaK|ioe) se yuowl
palojuow aq 0} anunuol yoea sasealoul panuijuod Joj Bumojle
[Im sainbly swooul| 8jep o0} swodul [enjoe U paseq Mou ale
‘pajuswis|dwl] usaq aAey| suoljosfoid awooul 8iNin4 ‘uejd ssauisng

alnypuadxa Buisuoyjne aouel||y 8y} Aq pajedionue ssoy} jaw (uoo )

1o} sassao0id maN Jou aAeYy saunbij SWOdUl 81JUSI aINSIST] S99IAI9S 3INSiaT

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
YJUuo\ ise] winjnQ jobpng
paiinbay uonoy aoueLIBA JO asne) eouEUEA aoueleA pejosfoid | pesiney CRITVETS

¥ XIAN3ddV

ONINYVIT ONOT3dIN

€L/Z10Z wnuno




‘vL/€L0C ol

pisemuo} Buinow aoiales

sy} Joj |spowl jeuonjelado

ue Buisodouid podau

e paonpold sey dnoib
109(oid s821M88 2ISN BYL

SYIS

yelp-al 0} UsyeuspUN
Buiaq Apuaiing S| YoM

‘wiLo'o3

0} ayenba sbuines Buie|al s|jooyos

JBYJ0 Joulp\ "Swodul JO SSO| pue S)S0o
Buiyels o) bunejas wegy L 03 Jo pusdsiano
ue Buiseoalo} ale so2IAI8S 2ISN

(wgz1 03) paje|ay sjooyds

"SI3Sy
pUB JUSLWIUIBA0L) UYS|IOAA Y} O} papuooss
yejs 1o} sebieyoal 0} pue | O| pue salddns

uo ainjipuadxa a|gesusnyul 0} aje|al
asay] ‘pejosiosd ase |ejo) Ul WGZL 03

o) Buenba saosusioyje Jouiw Jo Jaquinu Y
921A19¢ Juswaaoiduw) jooyos

‘'SyS dn uaye) jJou aAey S|ooyos

aJaym seale ul ain)ipuadxs aonpal 0}
salnsealw JO Jaquinu B uaye)} sAeY siapjoy
196png ‘1 NQ 18 Juswaaibe ue uimolo4

(wgg} 03 jJo aunssaud) sy1S

Page 68

AHCOO “ee v
90INIBS
JuswaAosdu)
|ooyos

paiinbay uonoy

aouBLIBA JO ashe)

(w3)

YIUo Ise
aduelep\

(w3)

asueleA

(w3)
wininQ
pajoafoad

(w3)

Jebpng
pasinay

CLTTVETS

¥ XION3ddV

ONINAV3T ONO134IT

€1/21L0¢ wnpnQ




‘Buinuluod

s| s}abpnq uoisnjou|

JO maIABl Juediubls v

‘pus JeaA 1e ussue sey w/ L0 03 O 9JIAI9S
uoISN|oUl 8y} U0 puadsiano Joujw Y
99IA18g UOISN|dU}

‘sjebpnq pajebajop uou o0} Buljelsl w
ussle sey Wwezo 03 JO puadsiano |lews y leb)
sj}abpng |ooyog pajebajaq uoN w
o
‘puadsianc ajeloloaiiq
ayy Buionpau ul jsisse 0} weg0 03 Aq siseq
JJo-8uo e uo ainjipuadxs paje|as SwolsAS (yuoo"-)
pue || paonpal sey ajelojoaliq syl 90IAIDS
yun Juawarocidwyi JuswaAoidw|
pue asueuLiopudd Abayensaun 19| |ooyos
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuo ise wnjno jobpng
palinbay uonoy aoueleA Jo asne) souEUEA aoueueA pejoefold | pesiney CRIVVETS
€i/210g wnpnQ

¥ XION3ddV

ONINYV3T ONOT134IT




9

w9 0’03 Jo sbuiaes Jouiw
Jayjo aJe asay] ‘sjoafoid Jayjo uo abeddis
uaaq sey ajay} ataym Buipuny jueib ssi|in
0} Juelb 1sJi4 saijiwe ay} 0} swi} uiwpe
pue Juswabeuew jo Juswsale ue pabieyoal
aA,8M 8snedaq uasue aAey sbuines ssay ]
(wpz0'03) wea] diysisuped s,a/doad
BunoA @ uaipliyD sy} ui spew sbuines
Koueoena 0} pue (Wp/0°03) 196png ss|lep
ul 81eop|iyD ay} uo Bulaes |jews e pue
sjuswabuelse Buunosse 0} SUOIJI8II0D
awos 0] saje|al uelg Buik|4/yuowAi)
Jsuiebe wgQ |03 jo Buines y

wooL’'03

Jo Aoualoyya - peys Bulhjd/yowA)

(Juoo )
$92IN0S9Y
» Juswdojanag

o
N~
‘apew )
usaq os|e aAeYy wzZ90 03 0} bunenbs w
ainypuadxs psjosloid Jayjo Ul suolonpal o
Jouipy -}ebpng woolisse|) 8[Iqo
‘ssa00ud 196pnq| @ui uo spew usaq sey wiggl 03 jo Buines
¥1/€102Z 9y} jo yed se Vv "9lewl|o oiwouods ay} ui sabueyd
papiwugns usaaq aAey spiq JO @sneoaq (suoissiwal pue s|esw
ainssaid pue pasoyuow| |00yds dauy) syysuaq (ldnd uo psjedionue (- "u09)
Ajinjaseo Buleq ase 186pnq Auauing si weEz 03 J0 ainssaid S$92IN0S9Y

9y} Jo sjusws|s yjog (wz00°03 4o ainssaud) spun d1AI8S|6E0°0 G200 gLL¢Cl £60°¢Cl % Juswdojara
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
YJuop i3se winyno yobpng
paiinbay uonoy aJoueLIBA JO asne) eouBLEA aoueueA pejosfoid | pesiaey CRITVETS

¥ XION3ddV

ONINYV3IT ONOT34IT

€L/Z1Log wnpno



"saiousiolye Joj Abajel)s
paalbe ay) Juswajdwi 0}
SNUIUOD 0} SPIdU BIAIBS

‘ABajess siy}

JO Siseq 8y} WJoj 0} pasn 8q Sey M3IA8I
3SdVY Yelp ayl ‘uswainooid/uononpal
1S09 ‘s,nuaw pawayyparocidwi ‘seibsles)s
dn-aye) paseasou; Bunebie) ‘Buipueiqal
‘syualed 1o} sjuswAed aulj-uo se

yons sjoafoid ein asiuiapow 0} sjesodoud
|eoipes Buidojansp s| ao1nIeg Buusie) syl
wepy 03 Jo aunssaud - sadiAleg Ajljioe4

"L pouad je papodal se ¢1/€102

0} pJemioj pauied ussq sey woglL 03
‘AiBuipioooe pajsnipe aq ued sjabpng

Jey) os Jun juawalinooid ay} Ag pajenobau
S)0BNU02 J110ads 0} aje|al sbulnes

3y} Jo sjusws|d yoiym asAjeue o} buiobuo
si s}jobpng podsuel| Juspn}S JO MaiA8I

VY ‘uoneoojieal a2IAI8s snq |ed0| pue
sbuiaes Joeljuoo/juswainoold 0} sajejal
puadsiapun ay). ‘Hodsued] juspnis

uo pajedionue si w9 L 03 Jo Aousidiye uy
wo9L 03

Jo Aouaidiye - podsuel) Jusapnis

i

N~

)
(@)

©

o

AHCOO. cese v
S83JN0S3TY

» JuswdojaaaQ

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3z)
YJUuo Ise wnino jobpng
paiinbay uopoy aouelIeA Jo ashe) eouBLIEA aoueuep pejosfoid | pesiney 9JIAISS
€L/21L0c wnnQ

¥ XIAN3ddV

ONINYV31 ONO134IN




9000

ce0’0

Sco'LLL

€66°0L1

- lejolL

Joy} pig ainssaud jo6pnqg
e pue ubisapal 92IAI8S
pue uoljoe Juswabeuew
jo Joo[gns ay} si siyL

‘SaoUBLIeA
Jouiw 0) saje|al Jopuiewsal ay| "pus Jesh
spiemo} pajediofjue uey) Jamo| usaq aAey
swieo se }26pnq swiejd asueinsui 8y} 0}

saje|al UlWpY [elauss) @ Juswabeuel uo
puadsiapun pajoafoid ayj jo Ajuolew ay |
wgoL 03 Jo saloualdyyd

- UIWpY [eJ3uadn) g Juswabeue

‘WeP0 03 Aq seale ||le ssoloe ainjpuadxs
pajosloid paonpal sey 92IA18S YINOA 8y L
92IA19S YINOA

‘ooe|d Bunje} AjAnoe

Buiues|o JO |9AS] JomOo| B Y)Im s|qeuleljeun
SI Yyolym sjsixa ||ns 19b1e} swoosul abie)

V "S8}IS Jajjews JaY)0o SWos pue Joejuod
SUN0D meT 8y} woly pajessuab snidins sy}
JaA0231 0} 8jqeun si ad1M9g Bulues|) sy |

Page 72

(juoo*°)
$90IN0s9Yy
B Juswdojensg

palinbay uonoy

aoueLIBA JO ashe)

(w3)

yjuop Ise
aoueLIBA

(w3)

aosueLieA

(w3)
winpnQo
pajoafoud

(w3)

jebpng
posiAnay

ELITNETS

¥ XIAN3ddV

ONINYV3IT ONO134dIT

€1/210C Wnpno




‘S9OUBLIEA Joulw Jayjo (Wsz0'03)
‘swwo) dio) - s)sod abejsod

pue Bunuud peonpai (wgzo'03)
‘puadsiopun sainseaw

Kyojes aaAojdwa (weL0'03)

"Juelb

77 01 8bieyoas buels (we00°03)
"SUO[}08140D

uonenuuesadns sauejes (WZLo 03)
‘juiodiabueq

SpJemo} uonNquUIU09 10)09s Alejun|oA
e 0} Bunejas ainssaid wy Lo 03

‘sBuines Aoueoena (wg Lo 03)((680°0) (680°0) |162°C avee aAnnoex3 Jeiyd
(w3z) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
Yjuop isen wnuno yobpng
palinbay uonoy aouelleA Jo asne) eouBLIEA aoueLiep pejosfold | pasiney 9JIA18g
G XION3ddV S3AJIAYTS FLVHOdH0D (wininQ) g1L/z10Z Buliojiuo 386png

Page 73



"saoueLIeA JoulW Jaylo (w290 03)
‘pabieyo saa [ebo (w9 L0°03)
abejsod/bunund (wseo'03)
‘sebueyo Aiejes wizgo 03
‘'seouemo|ly Aljiqisuodsay
jeioadg siaquiay (wg90 03)

(¥81°0)

(+81°0)

LGL°E

S380IAIBS

Lye'e oneloowsa( % |eba

‘passasse A||n} 8q ueo sjoedw
8U} pue paonpoJiul e Yjog se
MaiAal Japun 1day 8q 0} (SH1D
Buipnjoul) wiojal alejam

0} Buiejai s}S0D 92I0PHOAA

‘S9OUBLBA Joujw JBYJO wgz0 03
‘M3INRY 8oueul{ d)jesodio) ay) o}
Bunejaa sbuines Aoueoen (wyg0o°03)
‘Juel) uonisuel |

aWBYoS UoiONpPay Xe] |Iounod

Joj awooul [euonippe (wzi L 03)
‘abejsod/bunuud

Aousioys (w250°03)

"sAep Jipne |euonippe

0} Bunejal ainssaid wgy0 03
‘apelbdn ajemyos walsAs sjyouaq
e 0} Bupejal ainssaid wGEO 03
"awayos

poddng xe] [1Iouno) mau ay) pue
wiojoy aJejjo M 104 uonesedaud ul
}JOM |euOnIppE JO 8Snedaq sjyauag
¥ SONUBASY Ul S}SOD I0PHOM

0} Bunejel ainssaid wLyS 03

€610

€610

44° N4

LGEY aoueui

paJsinbay uonoy

aoueLeA Jo asne)

(w3)

yuop Ise
aouelLIA

(w3)

aouenep

(w3)

wniunQ
pajoaloid

(w3)

3obpng

ELTTNETS
pasinay

S XION3addV

S3DIAUTS JLVIOdUOD

(wnnE) £1/Z10Z Bunoyuo 386png

Page 74



(L22°0)

(282°0)

c6L°L)

6.0°8L

:lejolL

"Se1oUBioIYd Jay)o (Wi L0"03)
"Aousiolys Juswaindold (Wwe00°03)
"awooui siejsibal jeuonippe

0} uonees ut Aouaioie (wzo'03)
‘SMalnal ao1Aes Bulobuo o)

Bune|as sbuines Aoueoea (wL80°03)
"$1S09 Juld B ubiseQg

|euy ayy 0} bupejal aunssaid w0003

(0Z1°0)

(8L1L°0)

G6C'G

€Lv'S

S90IAIS

Jowolsnd g 19|

"S9OUBHLIEBA JOUIW J3Y}0 WS00 03
‘sBuineg Aoueoep (wsg0'03)
‘YL/E | Ul Uohisuel} MaINaY
90IAI19S YH 40} uoisinoid wsg0 03
‘puadsiapun

yiesH [euonednooQ (wgyL 03)
‘suonesiueblio |euseixe

WIOJ} BWODUI JO SSO| WGZ0'0F
"s)yoayd gy ainssaid wzz0'03

(1200

(680°0)

6€G'¢

8¢9°¢

juswdojenag

|euonesiuebiQ R
$90IN0SaYy UBWNH

paiinbay uonoy

@aouBLIBA JO 3sne)

(w3)

Yjuop jse]
asuelLEA

(w3)

aoueLIEA

(w3)

wnpnQ
pajosfoid

(w3)

jobpng
pasIAdy

ERITVETS

G XION3ddV

S3JIANYTS F1LVHOdHOD

(uwininQ) g1/Z10zZ Buloyuol 16png

Page 75



Page 76



‘sjeadde
ajqissod pue suoljeujwalap
[eba) Buipuad mainal Japun

1day aq |Im Bwodul [Bjpuim,
Ul Jnsal Aew yoiym swiejo
VA Buipuejsino jo Jequinu

M3IABJ Japun das)

‘spodas Buuojuow
aJnjnj ul uo payodal pue
A|9s0jo paiojiuow ag 0} aNUNRUOD

‘Jeak [elouBul JUSLIND

ay} ul aq |Im i Jeuy Aj@y1| ssa| paiapisuod
mou si 31 ybnoyye ‘ainyng ay) ul |1ouno)

3y} 0} awWodu [[ejpuim, leuonippe Bulig Aew
yoiym sasea buiobuo [BiaAas JO U0 sulewsal
siy] ‘[eadde Jo} spunoib ase aiay) jey)
paiapisuod si Ji ybnoyye ‘sased Buipuejsino
3y} jJo auo Jo J10adsal ul OHINH JO JnoAey Ui
pUNO} UOISIOap [BUNGL] JUSJAI Y "8I18YMSS|3
aonoesd pue wojsng 0} sabus|ieyo [e63)

J0 10edW] ay) 0} anp | YA jo JuswAediano
‘aJ Wiejo Buipue)SINo U. JO JUaWI|)as

10 198dsaJ ui pajedioiue uasq Ajsnoiralid
pey w0 03 J0 awodul ||ejpuim [euoilippy

paJinbal Jou mou s| yaiym (senssi sojssgse
ouo)siy Joj Ajjigel| [erjusjod e o} Buneal)

punj asueInsul Ue ulylm uoisiroid 3a6png e o)
anp paiijuapi usaq sey w|90"03F Jo Buines v

‘spodas Buuoyuow ainyny ui uo

palodas pue A|asojo palojuow aq ||IM S|9A3)
awooul [[BjpuIpA “108o.d J0jleq/uone)nsuod
Jajsuel) ¥20}s BUISNOH 8y} U0 PaLINduUl 3wl
JJelSs 10} S}SOD |RUOIIPPE 10} WIEID S,[I2UNoD
3y} JO JUSLILIBAOS) YS9\ AG JUBWIBNSS
U893 8y} JO JUNODJE SAYE} YOIUM ‘W80 0F

(8

Buiyueq ‘adsueinsut)

llim 3wodul pajebpnqun Jo sjaAsT] 4O awoou; ||ejpuim [euonippe st a1ay1|(zeo'0)  |(2€0'0) 8ee'e 0/£C Bulpung g Buioueuly
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yyuon
wnpno
paiinbay uonoy aouele) Jo asne) jse} asuelep j9b6png pasinay 9OIAIBS
pajosfoid
aoueleA
9 XIaN3ddV 31vH0dH0D VHLINIOD

Page 77



SM3IAB) 90IAJaS 2140)SIY Buimo||o)
pansiyoe Ajsnoinaid sarouaioyye 196png Asejes
wouy Buyinsal w/ g0 03 Jo puadsiapun uy

‘panoidde sem }abpnq

€L/CL 8y} Jaye Jjun paAl@dal

Jou sem juawieal) uy abueys ayy
Jo Amuod Aq uonedyoN ‘gL/zL ul
alnssaud 196pnq yo-suo e si siy |

‘uoljen|ea [elenyoe 010z ayi Buimojjos

nouep pund uoisuad pAM|Q ay} jo aleys
s,)louno? ay ssalppe o} Abajesis Buipuny
paseyd ay} wolj wo{0'0F 40 snidins jlews v

"'Saoue|eq Jo Juawjeal;
Bununoooe uo (Dgo Amuo)) Ajuoyine
pea| ay} jo sjuawaiinbal jipne |euisixa
Buimol|o} puny uoljew.osued) [euoibal
ay} jsuiebe we/0° 03 jo puadsiono uy

(862°0)

(£22°0)

908}

6.0¢C

Jayjo - sjesodio)

‘a|qissod aJaym pauoioe
pue palojdxa aq |m s}abpng
aoueul{ ajelodion) B |enuad

ay} uiyym yuswubijeal 196pnq Joy
saunpoddQ “Ajyjuow paJojuow

aq |m spuadsiano Jueoyubis |Iv |

"wgz0 03 Jo ainypuadx3y
SNO3UR|IISIW JBYJ0 U] 8sealdsp v

‘uoijesiuebioal

JUSWIUIBAOL) 2207 966 8y} 0} Joud
sjuawaual Alies sasko|dwa Jawoj o) pajuelb
sJeaA pappe jo joadsal ul WYEQ 0F 4O S1s0D
uojjenuueJadns |euoljippe uo puadsiano uy
‘saluadoud

[Iounoy) Jo joadsas ul YN o sejeqgal
aAnoadsosal ay} uo Joedwi Jusanbasuod

e yim Jeah Juanno ayy ui Ajdieys pasnpal sey
suoienjeA YN Jsuiebe sjeadde |njssadons
JO S|8A3| 3y} S| SIY} JO} suoseal ay} Jo suQ
"wns siy} jsutebe w1 03 Jo |lefdoys e aq
[Im 818y} am ey} sjsabbns ajep o} paaladal
JUNOWE 3y "WgG | 0F JO SWOodUi ||ejpuim
|euonippe Joj sapinoid jebpnq aseq ay|

paiinbay uonoy

aoueleA Jo asned

(w3)
yuoW
1se
aouellep

(w3)

aouelep

(w3)

wnyno
pajoafoid

jobpng pasinay

(w3)

LIV ETS

9 XIaN3ddv

J1VH0dH0D TVAHINTO

Page 78



"W/00°03 Jsaejul [eusdyul

/ sabueyo uawabeuew jgap ul uolonpal
‘WG9 03 SIS0 Buimousoq |ejuapnid

ur uononpai ‘we 003 (dyIN) uorsiaoid
aNUBASY WNWIUIP Ul uolonpal ‘wg9 L 03
a|qeded }saJajul [BUIB)UI PUE SUEO] J8MJEew
a)el g|qelieA uo ajqeAed jsasajuil Ul uooNpay
w9003

]1S@Jajul [eUISlUI JBYJO Ul 3SeaJoul ‘Wey0 0F
Buimoliog |eluapnid uo paAladal jsaia)ul
|eusajul pasealoul ‘wggo 0F SuswWisanul
Aieiodwa) U0 paAIaDal }sala)ul padnpal
‘(wzg|"03) awoout Juelb |g97 pajebpnqun

(92¥°0)

(6£5°0)

199°¢l

00C'¥lL

WUNOJ0Y JUaLI}SaAU|
Q SUeoT [BJjUaD

"Wwey0'03 Jo puadsiapun
Jau e 0} Bulunowe saduBLIBA JoUIW JaY}0

pajabpng Apealje [aA3] ybiy ayj Jo $s89x3 Ul
aouewJopad A1aA00a1 0} BNP puny uoKd3|j0d
XB] [I9un0D 8y} Uo W{|'0F Jo snidins

‘sjuswiedaq o} Jno pajedo|e aq
0} paJinbai Jou sem yoym uoleju| pJepuels
'UON JO UOKBOO|[B U} Ul WZ/0'03F JO snidins v

"S}S00 JUBW)IWIWOD
uoIjoNpaJ uogJe) Ul Wyg0’ 03 JO aSealou| uy

-1eak siy} pasi|iin 8gq MOoU JOU ||IM YdIym
S1901Y0 Jal} puoodas pue Si0}oali(] JOj Spieme
Aed |eyuawaiouy Joj uoisiroid 196png Alejes
wouy Bunnsal w g 03F Jo puadsiapun uy
‘saaio|dwa Aouabe jo Juswaindoud Joj

YJOMawelj XUje 8y} JO 8Sn WOy Paan0dal
sajeqal ay} uo wgyl0’'03 jo snidins paonpal y

paJiinbay uonoy

aosuepeA jo asnen

(w3)
Yyuop
ise
aoueliep\

(w3)

aoueyep

(w3z)

wnyno
pajoaloid

j0Bpng pesirey

(w3)

LTV ETS

9 XIAN3Iddv

J1VH0d4H00 TVAHINTO

Page 79



(¢9s0) [(avv'0)  [seL'2z 18L°€2 i leo)
ajebalbbe
(110°0) (110°0) 88€'9 66€°9 - S8JUeleA J3Yj0

‘Ino
pawJed Bujiaq swauow jsod Jo Jaquuinu Jamo| slauolo)
e 0} anp DgOM woJy abieyoal paonpay|(+20°'0) (¥20°0) €91L°0 /810 80IAIBG [BIJUSD

"sjuswaalby

"SaJNIN{ BJIYSIUl|4 JO WEBISHIOA [9AS7 8019 Wl sabieyoal [eusaul

aoueui{ ay} jo Jed se pamaiaal 10 malAal jo Joedw wggo 03 snid ‘voH
Buiag Ajjuaiino ale suoneso|e ay) pue sjunodoe BuipeJ) wolj pajanodal sableyosy
pue siseq a0iA9g Hoddng awodul [ewssiul Jo W/ yE'03 40 |[BjHoYS| 8220 £ev'0 (L29'L) (¥502) 80IAIBG [BJUBD

(w3) (w3) (w3) (wz)
Yjuon
palinbay uonoy aoueleA JO ashe) jsen aouelep N0 j9b6png pasinay LTV ETS
pajoafoid
aoueliepn
9 XIAN3ddV J1VH0dH0D TVH1INGD

Page 80



Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

APPENDIX 7

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2012

Less - Base Level (inclusive of increase of
£0.088m agreed as part of the 2012/13
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

2011/12 approvals

Less amount approved in 2011/12 as being
ringfenced for Investment in Change

Less allocation from contingency reserve to
meet one-off / time limited costs in 2012/13
(approved in 2012/13 budget and allowed for
in calculation of 2011/12 final outturn on
contingency reserve)

2012/13 approvals

Less - allocation from contingency reserve as
a one-off investment to support the new
Leisure facilities in their first year of operation
(approved in Month 3 report)

Less - Impact of provision for MMI scheme of
arrangement - as approved by Cabinet on
19" February

Less - allocation from contingency reserve
towards costs of late March severe weather

Add final underspend as at 31% March 2013

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1%
March for funding of one-off costs in the
2013/14 budget proposals

Final Level of Total Contingency Reserve
as at 31 March 2013

Page 81

£m

9.029

(5.564)

(1.500)

0.973

(0.361)

(0.770)

(0.384)

£m

3.465

(2.473)

(1.515)

4.229

3.706

(0.297)

3.409



Page 82



g xipuaddy

Ly0°L-

9.0°}-

Z00°'L

T |0l

00L's

60L'S

(s1e621668)
saoueleA JaylQ

‘sebleyosal voH
|| Jo ssauljpwi) pue Aoeinooe
ssaiboid 0} Bulobuo Si HIOAA

"BUIAES Y0g 3 B Ul bunnsal pasienajelu
10U Juawaaibe Buioueul4 Juiop

%913 jo bulres

B 8ABY S)S00 2ljesoowa( % ajesodio)
‘uoije|najesal

sueo Aueiodwa] uo Buines 3293

601-

ove'e

6vE'C

Buioueul4 [eyden

CL/LL0C Pue LL/0L0C

0 pouad ay) 190 Buneay BulloAod SYEBAA
ay) pue syybioH apse 1oy s||iq snolaid
0] JUSWpUBLLE Y} 0} NP SoUBLEA Y883
"Jebpnq

1e pajedionue uey) Jamo| 6ulaq saipadoid
JUaYy 0JaZ 8Y) 0} anp S! SdUBLEA ) |GF

Zs

ovl

LZy'se-

096'GeZ-

sjusy

pasinbay uonoy

aoueueA Jo asne)

(w3)
yjuopy
1se

aoueLIEA

(w3)

eoueuep

(w3)
wniynQ
pejosfoid

(w3)

Jebpng
pasinay

ELITNETS

JUNO22Y dNUAAIY

BuisnoH

(winnQ) g1/Z10Z Buuioyuo 326png

Page 83



‘pasoduwy

sauj|peap 0} anp [enJooe ou ‘€1/Z102
ul pasijelajell Jou s)sod jng paje|dwod
SHIOM PIOA 10} piemioj ALied YOELF

"SWa)| [BOLIO)SIY JJO SjUM

0} 9SBaIU| Sjgap peg aaueinsu| 30013
‘puadsiano paalbe ue

sem Joeijuod Bunuied |eunwwo) d6i L3
‘sabieyoal 199|4 uo

pajeIsiano Jeak ay) Joj suonosfoid %963
‘spuadsiano 2101y 0} anp

puads Jano josu02 b1y Buidesy aoueury
0} anp puadsiapun JOJOBIUOD qNS Y5823
-ainjonysai Buiieme saroueosea wia) Buo)

aoueUBUIB)

g Xipuaddy

0} 8np sapeles uo puadsiapun Y003|0LS- 0€s- 8YZ'8 8LL'8 pue siieday
“3|npayas 3)9|dwod
0] Ua)e} 3wl 0} anp ‘s)sod pajedianue
Japun %g93 je paja|dwod 10e1ju0d uspJles)(as- 06- 719°L oLl yswabeuey ajejs3
paje|njedal
sabieyd poddng Apisgng [eydeD |09 85 891'9 oLL'9 Apisgns vyH
€L/zioc
Ul pasi|elajew jou sjsod Aouepunpay pue
‘sabieyoal yoddns yyH| s1s0o ajjsuosie 10} pieasuo) Aued 30023
ay} Jo ssaujaw pue Aoeinooe| sbuiaes Aoueoep -pajedionue uey) Jomo|
ssalboud o) buiobuo s JIopA 583 1e pajejnojes sabieysal poddng(zGy- 62S- 116°1L 00S'2 poddng pue asueul4
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Uuow uniyng 19bpng
palinbay uonoy 92UBLIEA JO ashe) jse aouelep e ——— TN ETS
aouepep pejaeloid PasIAsYy
JUNO023Yy 2nudAdy BuisnoH (wnpNQE) £1/210Z Buliojiuo 1obpng

Page 84



[sz11 fess' 20870 S3DIAUIS ALINNWAOD 304 S3IONIIDI443 TV.L0L |
182°0 1850 00€°0 viol
Q3A3IHOV AON3IOI443 1820 1850 00€°0 aweydg aleD eAX3 PION
(a2 XIGNTddV) Swe)| Sies) snojaald o) Bupejay - setousioyy3
jpve0 L2z} ese0 V1oL
_ . . . S1S07) JuswWade|4d Aluno)
Q3A3IHOV ADN3I0I443 80 902"} 29€°0 101N0 UOINPSY - MaIABY BIMpUBdyS JeIoeI] SSOI)
QU3A3IHOY AON3I0I443 0000 1200 1200 51S00 2100 - MaIAeY ainjipuadx3 a)jelopal( ssoID
(P2 XIGNIddV) 400 - Se13us)aly3
jooo'0 [pz1-o [pz10 IvioL
. _ . _ . pun4 youno)
Q3AIIHOV AON3IDI443 0000 v20°0 200 PUE Vo UseMIaq a8y JUBWBBEUBL JO JUBLIUBIESY)
@3AIIHOV AON3IOI443 0000 0010 0010 uonesijeuoney juswabeuepy SadlAIaS SUBJPIYD
(52 XIONTFddY) uonesiusepoy pue sbuey) ed1A18g [eulalu| - S8]OUBIIY 3]
saojnes Apunuwiod
(w3)
uopeuLIojul wouwensiyoiona (w3z) (w3)
ueA8jaJ Jayjo Jo snjejs uogisod = 8A180d Aouad Kouald uopduoseq Aouaid
JueA8]a) JAYJ0 JO SNJE}S UORS UopISO JUeLIND R BT 103 nduoseq Aousous3
jusund poddns 03 uojjewosuy Jsyyung = oapieBoN lenjoy pajabpng
esuepeA

AULSTUI
i EREL

Z

& xipuaddy - S@JiAleg

junwuo)

£1/Z10Z WnNPnQ [euld - BULO)UCK ASUSIIHIT

ENERITE|

BuLIoHIUGH 39BpNng

Page 85



Page 86



| [oooo 605"t [eoss INIWNONIANS 304 SFIONIIDIIT VoL |
000'0 028°0 fozso IvLioLl
a3A3IHOV AON3ID1443{000°0 89€°0 89€°0 IIUPUE| WOY UOISIBAID PBSEAIDU - BISEM POO
Q3AIIHOV AON3101443/000°0 0500 0500 aweydg uoldNpay uoqien
Q3A3IHOVY AON3ID14431000°0 c0v'0 c0v'0 Aouaoyya xey |lypue Z1/1 102 40 uojenujuo)d
(32 XIGNIddY) swey} siee ) snojasld o) Bupe|ey - sejousiowy3
0000 leso'0 lesa-o vioL
. . . sajey olsawo() uoN Joj 3abpnq
Q3A3IHOVY AON3I01443{000°0 G200 G200 Ul UOIONPBY - MEINGY 2INPUBXS BJeI0IPBI SSOID
. . . ain)ipuadxg soueusjuiepy Auadoid ajesodio)
Q3A3IHOV AON3IDI443[000°0 00S°0 0050 10 uopesyENden - MaInay ainypuadX] oJeIC|oai] SSOID
. . . U0ISIADIA-J3A0 JuaLIND 0} anp ApIsqng sng 10} JeBpng
Q3A3IHOV AON3ID1443]000°0 GCL'0 G210 Ul UORINP3Y - MAINGY aIMpUBdX BJeICoaII] SSOID
A3A3IHOV AON3ID1443|000°0 /200 2200 S]S0)) 810D - MaIASY ainjipuadx3] ajelo)oal( ssoI)
Q3A3IHOV ADN31D1443|000°0 cL00 2100 Buuojuow a)is 8)sem pue sjesaulw Joj abieyd
(P2 XIGNIddV) 1900 - S812UsIIW3
JuswuolIAUg
w3
I ) (w3)
UOojJeULIOJU| JUBAB|EL JAYY30 JO SNIEIS uopisod (xoq umop-doaq) = BAMSOd A
jus.Lino poddns 0} uopEULIOU} JOYLN uoRISOd JueLng weuwensousopun | Kouejoyye Aousioie uopduoseq Aoueioyyy
= oapEBoN
soueLeA lenjoy pejefipng

AUl
i A aig

RIS

o)

§ Xipueddy - JUSWUOIIAUT

€1/210Z uInynQ |eutd - bulojiuoly ASU3IdIL]

Page 87



jeos0

joos'1

[ros-o

ONINYVIT ONOT34IT7 304 S3IONFIDI443 TVIOL

20670 0S°1 9°0 TviOL
i . i S)s00) Juswade|d Ajunod
Q3AIIHOV AONIIOI443 20670 GZE'L £2V°0 101N0 UONONPSY - MOIASY SINIpUBdXT 31210108110 SS0I)
A3A3IHOV ADN3IOI443 000°0 9100 9L0°0 S1S0D 8100 - MaINRY ain)ipuadx 3 a)eiojoallq SSOID
‘uonebajap o) Joud : : : ssequnu idnd u; asealoap - Aydeibows
JUNOWE S1y AQ PEISNIPE SEM EINULIO |0OLDS BUL Q3A3IHOV AON3IOI443 0000 5910 G910 qunu idnd uf p-Ay a
(P£ XIGN3I V) 18U)0 - SalUBIRT
Bujurea buoysyry
(w3)
uoneuLIojul WouRANE9A0 (w3) (wi3)
uBA@[34 J13Y}0 10 snjejs uoljisod = aApisod 191 duosa ualol
JueAajas Jay) JE}S uon) uoRISOg JueLINg it | ey || WS uopduiaseg Aouepily
juaund poddns 0} uonewIojul JBYMNY = aapaBon [emoy pajabpng
sJuepeA

s
g A L_w.....&

€ Xipuaddy - Buiulea] Buoejr]

€1/210¢ UANRNQ [eut - BUNIGYUOW ASusaa

CEIREIRIE]

Buniojiuoy 3ebpng

Page 88



A3AIIHOV AON3IDI443 €000 €10°0 00°0 malnay Bunuud g Jejuld
A3aAIIHOVY AON3IOI443 000°0 0ZL'0 0ZL°0 Jswaalby soueuSUIEY BIEBMYOS SNJOT JO UOHKESSAD
J3IAIIHOV AON3IOI443 2500 2900 0L0°0 Buisusoi a1emyos YosoIDIN JO uoheplosued
14vd NI @3AIIHOV ADN3IDI443  {(200°0) ££0°0 GE0'0 aoueuajuiEy asemyos wasis Nl
A3AIIHOV AON3IDI353 1000 €00 Zv0'0 asea juawdinb3 suoydaje)
s99jMIaS 9)eI0dIo)) - SBIIAIBS JaWoISND ® 10}
. . . sapadosd
Q3AIIHOV AON3IDI443 0000 590°0 5900 pasesj A|jeuia)xa j0 ainso|d pauueld - juawoabeuep 18ssy|
“sieak ain)ny ur paAsIyoe aq |im Aoualyg
‘WI0jal aJejjom Joy asedald o) pue malnal 0) . .
10 uone|dwco 0} Joud $30 jusuEBLLIAd JOACD @3A3IHOV LON AON3IDI453 (5600 0000 5600 M3IAY UOHoUN | dUBULY
0} yejs dwsj Jo asn pue uonejuaws|dwn ui Aejag
s8oiAles ajesodio) - saueuUl4
Q3aAIIHOV AONZIOI443 1000 _<oo.o £00°0 (z aseyd) wa)sAs uolewuioju) Juswabeuepy YH
991088 9)esodio) - d0 ® MH
(94 XIONFJd V) uonesiuiepo pue ebuey) ediaieg [eusejul - Se|dus|d3
G0°0 10 0600 AviOL
Q3aAIIHOV AON3IDI443 £S0°0 evL'0 060°0 Ma3IABY Y)eaH |euonednad)
saoines 9)es0dio) - JO 9 ¥H
(e1 XIGNIdd V) s1eefoid sAjieloqe|o) - S8jouaidyy3
(w3)
uonEULIO) Weuisnel 81000 (w3) (w3)
ueAdjas 19 o snjejs uoyisod = 0rfji0d Aou onduoseq Asuald
b1 {24 48130 1O SNjels uonls uopIsod JueLINg wonenioespun | Aouepouge 310133 uondudse(q Aduaidyiy
juaLnod poddns 0} uojewsoul JBYHNY = aaubon {enoy pajabpng
CLUTITEYY

AsysiuIg
gy 418

EIAS

o)

& Xipuaddy - SediAleg eje1odio)

£1/210Z WINPNQ el - BUHOHUOW Aousould

Se1ouadlg

uliojiuoyy Jabpng

Page 89



Q3A3IHOV ADNZIOIFd3 910°0 6¢.°0 £89°0 fouabuguog uonenuuesadng Jo maiasy

. . . JUeLS UOHEASILIWPY
Q3aAZIHOV AONZIDI443 000°0 [#AN1] [AANI] Jyauag xe [punodAyauag BuisnoH o) sabuey)

$89IMJBS jel0dio)) - adueUl4
(a2 XIONIddY) swe)| sies snojaeid 0} Bunejey - sejousioy)3

lesoo 18¢°0 lereo w10l

Q3A3IHOVY AON3IOI443 000°0 0200 0200 ao1Alag uoIsIAB|a] [enbig

$991MIS 9)210dI07) - BANIBXT JAIYD

J3A3IHOV AON3IOI443 0000 1000 1000 S1S0D 210 - MaIAaY ainyipuadx3] sjeio)dallq $S0ID
. . . Aouaioyyg YO 0} 8]9AD | SI3UINOA

Q3A3IHOV AON3IDI443 Loo'0 100 9100 A19sInN Ul 8SBaI0U| - MAIASY ainjpuadx3 ajesoj0all] SSOID
. . . Aouaioye

Q3A3IHOV AON3IDI243 9100 9.0°0 090°0 XUJEN Ul 8SBaI0U| - MAIASY ainjipuadxg 9)el0)0a.i] SS0ID
uoisiaold

J3A3IHOVY ADN3IOI443 1S0°0 peL'o £/0°0 ~J9A0 JUBLIND 0} NP Sajey osawoq UoN Joj Jebpng
Ui UOIIONPaY - MaIAay ainjipuadx 3 ajeso)jaallq SSoI)

A3AIIHOV AON3IOI443 000°0 0200 020°0 Ana7 au14 ur uondnpay
A3AIIHOV AON3IOI443 0000 €200 £40°0 234 JIpny u| uooNpay

S80IAI8S 8jeJodio) - asueUl4 8)esodio)
(P£ XIONIddY) 48430 - Sejousioyl

[troo lezvo 1o IvioL
Q3IA3IHOVY AON3IIOI543 1500 6500 8000 M3INSY JUBWBINJ0Id
(w3)
uoREULIOJU Jowonepioieno (w3) (w3)
jueASjal J3YJ0 1o snje)s uopisod 8.5 SAhod Aousdyy uonduasaq Aousidyyy
jua1ind poddns 0) uonewIoul JOYMNS UoRISOd Jualing T e Junﬂﬂ% pajabpng
asueueA

aAysIU g - Seousidylg
T B § Xipueddy - Se9IAIog 8jei0dIo))

Page 90



Page 91

[21'0 6’1 108'} SADIAYES 3LVHOJYOD HO4 S3IONIIDIHE3 TVL0L |
lavoo lozo'1 086°0 10L
Q3A3IHOV AON3IDI443 000°0 G200 5200 AouabuguoD 42} 1811 PUZ PUE IS| JO MaIADY
A3AIIHOY ADNIIOI443 0000 0510 0510 Aouabuuo) JaXIoM JaIISY JO MalAaY
(w3)
uoneuuojul FUBLISABYLONIBAD AENV AENv
= OARsO4
jueAsjal J8Yjo Jo snjejs uonisod UORISO4 JUBLINY i e el W Aoussose Aouspoya uopduosaq Aouaidysy
juano poddns 0) uogetopul JayuN4 = oapeBoy pajebpng
aouBMeA Ul /

AU
g A b_w._...»

SepusPw3

ULIoHUO 39bpng



Page 92



APPENDIX B

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCI

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY, 16 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2012/13 (OUTTURN)

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

3.00

3.01

3.01.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide Members with the capital programme outturn information for 2012/13.

BACKGROUND

The Council approved a Housing Revenue Account capital programme for
2012/13 of £9.398m at its meeting of 21%' February 2012, and a Council Fund
capital programme of £23.825m at its meeting of 1% March 2012.

CONSIDERATIONS

Programme — Movements

The table below sets out how the programme has changed during 2012/13.

Council Fund Housing Total
Revenue
Account
£m £m £m
Council 21.02.12. (HRA) and 01.03.12. (Council Fund)
Original Capital Programme 23.825 9.398 33.223
23.825 9.398 33.223
Cabinet 16.10.12
Revised Capital Programme 29.882 10.888 40.770
Cabinet 18.12.12
Revised Capital Programme 30.076 10.888 40.964
Cabinet 19.03.13
Revised Capital Programme 26.441 11.591 38.032
Qutturn Report
As Previously Reported 26.441 11.591 38.032
Changes During the Final Quarter 4.453 0.041 4.494
30.894 11.632 42.526
Other Changes During the Final quarter
Ildentified Savings (0.237) 0 (0.237)
Early Identified Rollover to 2013/14 (Prev) - Adjustment 0.041 0 0.041
30.698 11.632 42.330
Rollover to 2013/14 - Current (4.244) (0.890) (5.134)
Revised Programme and Outturn 26.454 10.742 37.196

Page 93



3.01.2

3.01.3

3.02

3.02.1

3.03

3.03.1

3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

From the table it can be seen that the previously reported programme total of
£38.032m has decreased to £37.196m by way of the inclusion of net increased
schemes of £4.494m (Council Fund £4.453m, HRA £0.041m), identified savings
of £0.237m, and an adjustment of £0.041m on the previously reported Rollover of
£3.657m. These adjustments were offset by a year-end rollover total of £5.134m
(Council Fund £4.244m, HRA £0.890m).

Detailed cumulative information relating to each programme area is provided in
Appendix A and summarised over the page —
REVISED PROGRANME Original Rollover | Changes | Rollover | Savings Outturn
Budget From To
2012113 2011/12 2013114
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Corporate Services 3.458 0.697 (0.360) (1.283) (0.270) 2.242
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.025 0.050 0.145 (0.040) 0 0.180
Community Services 3.669 0.321 1.229 0.038 (0.050) 5.207
Environment 9.124 1.404 3.696 (2.580) (0.008), 11.636
Lifelong Learning 7.549 3.800 (0.009) (3.751) (0.400) 7.189
Council Fund Total 23.825 6.272 4.701 (7.616) (0.728) 26.454
Housing Revenue Account 9.398 1.490 0.988 (1.134) 0 10.742
Programme Total 33.223 7.762 5.689 (8.750) (0.728), 37.196

Changes During This Period

A summary of those changes recorded during the last quarter (together with
supporting narrative), is provided in Appendix B.

Identified Savings

Further savings of £0.237m within ICT infrastructure projects were identified in
the final quarter. This is in addition to the £0.491m previously reported bringing
the total to £0.728m.

Capital Expenditure / Outturn v Revised Budget

The Final Qutturn across the whole programme amounted to £37.196m,
representing 87.87% of the revised total of £42.330m. This compares to 51.81%
reported as at the previous quarter and 90.99% at the outturn stage 2011/12.
Further analysis of the achievement of 87.87% is detailed in the table over the

page. The outturn position (by directorate) is also displayed in chart form
overleaf.

Page 94



EXPENDITURE/OUTTURN

Corporate Services
Clwyd Theatr Cymru
Community Services
Environment
Lifelong Learning

Council Fund Total
Housing Revenue Account

ProgrammeTotal

Revised Outtum Variance % Outtum v

Budget Outtum v Budget

Budget
(Under)/Over
£m £m £m %

3.051 2242 (0.809) 7348
0.180 0.180 0 100.00
5.189 5207 0.038 100.74
13.258 11636 (1622) 87.77
9.040 7.189 (1.851) 7952
30.698 26454 (4.244)|—» 86.17
11.632 10.742 (0.890)|—» 9235
42.330 37196 (5.134)|—> 8787

3.04.3 The significant variances (those greater than £0.025m) are individually listed in
Appendix C, together with the reasons for such, and the required remedial action;
all other variances (those less than £0.025m) are aggregated within Appendix C
for each directorate.

CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE v CUMULATIVE BUDGET - OUTTURN
14.00 T 13.258
12.00 I ..... 11832
10.742
10.00
9.040
8.00 -
£m
6.00
5169 5.207
4.00
.051
2.242
2.00 <
0.130 0.180
0.00 e
Corp Sves CTC CommSves  Environment LL HRA
Directorate
l DRevised Budget D Actual Expenditure l

Page 95



3.06

Financing

3.05.1 The capital programme outturn total was financed as summarised below -

3.05.2 That element of the Council Fund total financed from general (non-specific)
financing resources relies in part on the generation of capital receipts from asset
disposals. The chart below provides details of the moving (cumulative) position
detailing the original estimate, revised estimate last quarter and the final level of

3.05.3

FINANCING RESOURCES

Final Monitoring
Council Fund
Housing Revenue Account

Outturn - Total Financing Resources

General Specific
Financing Financing
Supported Grants & Total
Borrowing/ Contributions / Financing
General Capital | CERA/Reserves/
Grant/ Capital Prudential
Receipts Borrowing
£m £m £m
13.800 12.654 26.454
6.008 4.734 10.742
19.808 17.388 37.196

actual capital receipts.

The cumulative position at Quarter 3 was reported to Cabinet on 19" March
2013. At that time, the final 2012/13 capital receipts figure was forecast at
£3.181m. The outturn position shows an increased total of £4.136m, influenced
by a range of factors such as the re-profiling/rescheduling of the timing of
anticipated receipts, revised values and some movement of potential disposals

to/from the list.

8.000

COUNCIL FUND CAPITALRECEIPTS (CUMULATIVE)-ACTUAL v ESTIMATE

7.000

6.000

5.000

£m
4.000

[ =
y
[ 7 a

3.000

2.000

1.000

;_____;_____..;__.;/

0.000

Apr May June July Aug

Sepl Qct
Month 2012113

—— Estimate - Original

—— Estimate - Previous Qtr

Page 96




3.05.4 The economic climate during the year made the realisation of capital receipts
difficult. However the outlook appears more positive in 2013/14 and receipts will
be closely monitored in order to assess the impact on the approved initial 80%
spending limits included in the 2013/14 capital programme.

3.05.5 The HRA resources are ring-fenced and used only for HRA purposes.

3.06 Rollover

3.06.1 The value of 2012/13 rollover (Council Fund & HRA) at £8.750m represents an
increase of £0.988m on the equivalent 2011/12 figure of £7.762m.

Within the total of £8.750m is the £3.657m (now reduced to £3.616m) that was
reported to Cabinet at the Quarter 3 stage (Cabinet 19" March, 2013); the
£3.657m represented the value of reviewed spending plans in respect of
programme works/contract retention releases in 2013/14.

Year end rollover stands at £5.134m (£4.244m Council Fund & £0.890m HRA),
including both council funded and grant aided/Prudential Borrowing schemes;
these amounts are required in order to fulfil programme commitments in 2013/14.

Members will recall the significant improvements made in the level of rollover in
2011/12 and although the figure this year is higher there are valid reasons with
some of the main causes being:-

e Receipt of an additional WG grant of £0.665m for schools;

e Adverse weather conditions in the final quarter resulting in some schemes
being delayed; and

o Delayed/protracted tender negotiations, some of which resulted in the
savings detailed in 3.03.1.

Comparative year-on-year information is provided in the table below, with details
of individual service rollover figures for 2012/13 provided as part of the
information in Appendix A.

ROLLOVER Analysis
Total Council HRA
From Into Fund
£m £m £m

2009/10 2010/11 9.698 7.326 2.372
2010/11 2011/12 13.029 10.233 2.79%6
2011/12 2012/13 7.762 6.272 1.490
2012/13 2013/14 8.750 7.616 1.134

Page 97



400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 The Cabinet is requested to:-

a) Approve the rollover adjustments detailed in 3.06

b) Note and approve the Report.
5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
5.01  As set out in Sections 2 and 3 of the Report.
6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 Many of the schemes in the programme are designed to improve the
environment, infrastructure and assets of the Authority.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT
8.01 None

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None.
12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix A : Capital Programme — Changes during 2012/13
Appendix B : Changes during this period
Appendix C : Variances

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Capital Programme Monitoring Papers 2012/13

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 98



(90°¢ 9as) aane|pwin)d LI1£1L02 O) J3A0|I0Y )
{€0'c 885 ) aApenwn) : sbunes v
(g xipuaddy a@as) Jauenb siy je sy = Jua.un) V
Jayuenb snoauid je se aAfe|nwng = SNondid : sabueyn v
202°G (050'0) 8€0'0 000°0 612'S A G100 LZE'0 699°¢
6L0°0 0 0 0 6L0°0 $00°0 5100 0 0
+00°0 0 0 0 +00°0 0 0 +000 0
800 {0500/ 0 0 880°C 8E00 0 0 0500
0 0 0 0 0 L0000 0 {1000} 0
0 0 0 0 0 1000 0 11.00°0) 0
SvL'g 0 8€0°0 0 80L°S (17 AR 0 6LED 6L9E
08L°0 000°0 000°'0 (o0'0) 0zzZ'o 0000 S0 050°0 620'0
0810 0 0 {0+0°0) 0zZ'0 0 StL'0 0500 Geo'o
ee (042'0) (6080} riv'0) G62'C (9200} (¥£€'0) 2690 86¥'c
.0) 0 {¥/0°0) 0 +40°0 {9200} iPEE 0} ¥rL0 0620
YAZAL) 0 181L0°0J {gcz0) 1250 0 0 Li20 0520
G66°L {0.2°0} {2L2°0) {8Lz’0) 002°€E 0 0 rA:TAl] 8162
w3 wy w3 w3 w3 wy w3y w3z w3y
(3usun)) |(snoirald) cLiLioe | L2102
{5 314 1114 PLICLOZ O3 | $L/ELOZ 03| 396pNg | (Juaun)) | (snommasg) | wo | 33bpng
wnino |sbuines | Jenojoy | 48n0jj0y | pesinay [sebuey)| sebuey |deaojoy | jleuibUO

sbuipeay 01 Aay

salis Ssla||arell
Angesiqg Losuss g |eoIsAyd
S32)AI3S S UBJPIIUD
Aungesiqg bululean
{buisnoH) jodag
JUBLWBADIdW|/|EMBURY 10088 BJeAlld
S321UDS AIUNWIWo)

IWAD Jjleayt pimio
aneayt

ajueul4 ajesodiod
spauuod alusuil4
Abojouyda] uopewou)
s$a21/uas ajesodio)

€L/21L0Z ONRING SIONVYHO - SNINVYEOONd TV.LIdVYD

: pung jiounod

V XION3ddVY

Page 99



9c9'LL (goo'o}  |{zes'y) (856°0) veevl 18¢°C Sig'L yor'L 21’6
+81°E 0 0 0 ¥8YE €99'L 0 0 002t
8.50 0 {0100 215°0) ooL'L zvoo 0 6L50 68%0
2000 0 {2000 0 ¥L0°0 0 ¥00°0 0L00 0
LLO0 0 0 0 LLO0 0 LL00 0 0
280" 0 {0+'0) 8110 0/9% 6020 L0ET 6220 GZ6'L
ZrLo 0 {zoo0 0 22%)] agL’o {o0E'D) 800°0 00€0
0SE0 0 (esro {crzo SLoL 60L°0 {ZezT'L) €0¥°0 GEL'L
€10 (8000)  |{¥sSc0) 0 GELO £80°0 0vg90 8000 0
G200 0 {soo0! 0 0Eo0D 0 €000 1200 0
£8.°C 0 t44 )] {SL1L°0) 120 SELO {6820 0020 GL6C
w3y w3 w3z w3y wy w3 w3y w3y w3
(auawin)) |(snotrald) ZLIL0Z | ELTLOT
gyzioe $LIELOZ 03 | ¥L/S1L0Z 03| 38BpNg | (uaun)) | (snomaiy) | wody | 32bpng
wnung |sBuiaes | Janojjoy | Jenojoy | pasinay |sabueyg| sabueyy |1aAojoy | JeulbluO

uoneuodsuelt

uonelauaday

sa01n8g Jabuey

sawayag Juels) buuueld
shkemybiH

JUBWIBJUEYUT [EJUBLUUOIIAUT] |EIBUBS
Suuaauibug

uswabeuey s3iSEN, 3lGELIRISNG
SJuN |EMISNpU|

sbuipiing aAnensIuILpY
JUBWIUOIIAUT

€1/21L0Z ONRING SEONVHD - SWNVEO0dd TVLIdVYO

(" pAU0D) ¥ XION3IdJY

Page 100



681'L (oo¥'0)  [(bG8'L) {006°1) ove'Lb +88°0 (€680} 008'¢ 6¥5'L
0500 0 {900°0) 0 9500 1200 0 GEOO 0
1200 0 0 0 1200 0 0 1000 0400
1200 0 0 0 1200 2200 6v0°0 0 0
1000 0 0 0 1000 0 1000 0 0
G290 0 {z+rz0) {968°0) £i8l \WAINI); 0E6'0 0E0'L 0
6LO} 0 {0z 0 (g 8L SELO 2890 GL60 0
8800 0 0 0 8800 2800 1000 0 0
v 0 (80001 {ogL'0) 2882 {2a¥°0) {gLeL) 122’1 rHYE
185°L wov'e) {8920 {€9€°0} OLLE iv90 108'L 2850 0800
L2ED (] {eov' Q) 0 ¥240 5600 {eL0€) 2000 00.°€
G+0 0 0 0 Giv0 LY 0 ¥00°0 0
1000 0 0 0 1000 0 0 1000 0
9200 0 {reo 0! 0 0900 0 0 0 0900
6000 0 0 0 6000 0 0 6000 0
0 0 {5a00) 0 G900 0200 0 0 S¥0°0
0€00 0 {0zL'0) 0 0SL°0 0 0 0 0sL0
1200 0 0 0 1200 0 4200 0 0
w3 w3 w3y w3 w3 w3y w3 w3y w3
(auaunQ) |(snoiraid) ZLLLOZ | £LIZLOT
eLeLoe PLISLOZ 03 | PLIELOZ 03 | 38BpPNg | (uaun)) | (snomaig) | wody | 396png
wnung | sbuiaes | seao0y | Janojjoy | pasiaay |sabueyyn| sebueyg |1aA0]joy JewblIO

buipung [euoqippy - S|O0YIS
Juawidinb3 'g ainjuin4 ‘S}I0AL JOUILY
s1EB\ ANET]

juawaaoldw| |00Yydsg
uoyeanp3 [epadg

Sjooyas Lepuodas

sgnid YinoA Aunwwed
UONESIUIBPOY) S|00YIS
s|00yas fLewd

|eJauac) - Uojeanp3y

SEaNy Ae|d

SpUNOJS) uoyeanay

1310 - UoNEBIIBY

afejuay pue apisiunod
safua) AunNwwo)

Sj00d Sujwunms

SaluaD aInsIa]

Bbuiwiea buoe)i]

€1/21L0Z DNIINA SFONVHO - INNVEOO™d TTVLIdYO

(' pAUOD) ¥ XIONIJdY

Page 101



961°2¢ (8ZL0)  |veV'S) (919°€) 997 ¥6¥'y G644 9L gzTee
rAZAE 0 {0680 ¥¥e0) a/8'Ll L¥0°0 L¥6°0 06%'L 86€°6
+6+'ag 82.0)  |ivvey) {2lE€) 861 VE EStY 8ve0 2T GZ8'ET
[A7X]} 0000 (068°0) vz’ 9/8°LL 1¥0°0 2¥6'0 o6¥’L 86C'6
ZYLoL 0 {0680 {t¥20) Q8L L¥0°0 LY6°0 06¥ L B6E6
w3 w3y w3y w3 w3y w3y w3y w3y w3

(3uaun) [(snoirald) ZULLOZ | ELITIOZ

gweioe P1/£1L0Z 03| #LIcLOZ 03 | 38Bpng | luaun)) | (snoprand) | wody | 39bpng

winunQ |sBuiaes | 4eaojj0y | 1an0jj0y | pasiaay |sabueyn| sabuey) (1ano0jj0y | jeulbuO

ieyo] puelg

UNO022Y anuaAdy buisnoy
pung j1Iouno)

:sjelol

awweiboid
JUNO2OY anuaAay BuisnoH

: JUN020Y anuaAay bujsnoy

€1/2L0Z ONIMNA STONVHD - ANINYHOO0Ud TYLIdVO

(" pAUOD) ¥ XIONIddY

Page 102



APPENDIX B

CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD

Councll Fund :

I(:orporate Services

Corporate Finance

ICIwyd Theatr Cymru

Clwyd Theatr Cymru

ICommunIty Services

Traveilers' Sites

Private Sector Renewal

Childrens Services

Environment

Administrative Buildings

General Environmental

Enhancement

Highways

Transport

Sustainable Waste

Engineering

Regeneration

Detall

Movements of budget from the Health & Safety
provision for : Traveliers' Sites £0.004m and
Community Centres £0.020m.

Movement of Budget from the Corporate
Feasibility Provision for : Ffrith Junction
improvements £0.010m. Flying Start Feaslbliity
Study now funded from grant, transfer back
original allocation (£.008m).

Health & Safety related works funded from
Corporate Provision £0.004m.

Community Energy Savings Programme (CESP)
Top Up Loans introduction of funding £0.829m.

Houses to Homes introduction of funding
£0.150m.

introduction of £0.061m for CESP top up loans,
being £0.002m Capital Expenditure financed from
Revenue Account (CERA) and £0.059m grant.

Funding Introduced for Empty Property Loans
£0.048m and Empty Property Grants £0.084m.

Funding introducted for Arosfa Childrens
Residential £0.038m.

measuras £0.068m and Spend to Save energy
efficlency measures £0.067m.

Funding introduced for the Greenfield Aftercare
project from a contribution fram Axel Nobel
£0.090m and Right Of Way improvement Plan
(ROWIP) grant for contaminated land £0.046m.

Funding introduced from the Corporate Feasibility
Provision for the Ffrith Junction improvements
£0.010m. £0.105m introduced for Street Lighting
through the Salix Energy Efficlency and £0.024m
for Warren Bank Broughton. Increase of budget
£0.035m from WG for Warren Bank Broughton
and £0.013m from Betsi Cadwalladr for the
Halkyn Street car park. Introduction of Salix
funding £0.022m for Street Lighting.

Grant funding introduced for Taith Smart Cards
£0.129m, Nationally Significant Infrastructure
Programme £0.350m, Talth Bus Strategy
£1.049m, Rural Deveiopment Plans £0.012m and
Taith Transport Strategy £0.123m.

Funding introduced for Civic Amenity Site

Introduction of funding for Mold Fiood Alleviation
£0.259m and a removal of grant for Land
Drainage - Gadiys Lane (£0.150m).

Heritage Lottery funding introduced for the
Holywell Townscape Heritage Inltiative £0.028m.
intraduction of funding for ERDF Capital
£0.014m.

Page 103

Funding Introduced for the Salix Energy Efficiency|SallxWG

Funding Source (Specific |increase *
Funding)
£m

0.008

Corporate Services 0.008

0.000

Ciwyd Theatr Cymru 0.000

0.004

CESP 0.828
Weish Government (WG) 0.150
CESP/CERA 0.061
WG 0.132
CERA 0.038
Community Services 1.214

0.135

Axel NobelWG 0.136
Salix'WG/Betsi Cadwallader 0.208
WG 1.663
WG 0.087
WG 0.259
Heritage/WG 0.042
Environment 2.531

Decrease

£m

(0.024)

(0.010)

(0.034)

{0.150)

(0.150)

Net

£m

(0.024)

{0.002)

{0.026)

0.000

0.000

0.004

0.829

0.150

0.061

0.132

0.038

1.214

0.135

0.136

0.209

1.663

0.087
0.108

0.042

2.381

Total

£m

(0.028)

0.000

1.214

2.381




APPENDIX B

CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD (continued)

Council Fund :

[Llfelong Learning

Community Centres

Play Areas

Educational General

Primary Schoois

Community Youth Ciubs

Early Years

School Madernisation

Total - Councli Fund

Housing Revenue Account :

Detail

Funding Introduced from the Corporate Feasibllity
Provision for Sealand Manor Community Centre
£0.020m.

Introduction of Section 106 funding £0.345m and
CERA £0.126m for Play Areas.

Flying Starl Feasibility Study now funded from
grant, transfer back to the Corporate Provision
{£0.008m). Funding introduced from Prudentlal
Borrowing (in place of leasing) to fund ICT
Equipment £0.073m.

Funding introduced £0.665m from the School
improvement Grant, Connahs Quay Bryn Deva
£0.199m, Buckiey Southdown £0.279m, Connah
Quay Wepre Lane £0.116m and Buckley
Mountain Lane £0.071m.

Funding Inroduced from the Flying Stari Grant,
Connahs Quay Bryn Deva £0,018m and funding
from Schools Target Hardening Grant for Bagliit
Merliyn £0.016m.

Funding Introduced from the Flying Start Grant for
Holywell Youth Centre £0.075m and Sealand
Youth Centre £0.012m,

Funding Introduced from Prudential Borrowing (in
place of leasing) for minibus in Holywell High
£0.019m.

Reduction in Funding from the Early Years grant
for Holywell St Winefrides (£0.010m).

Reduction in funding requirement due to revised
spending profile for Broughton CP School
(£0.024m), Ciicain Ysgol Y Foel (£0.011m}) and
Connah's Quay new School (£0.432m)

Funding Source (Specific
Funding)

CERA/various developers

PB/General

WG

WG

WG

PB

WG

PB

Lifelong Leamning

Increase *

£m

0.020

0.471

0.073

0.665

0.034

0.087

0.018

1.369

Decrease

Em

(0.008)

(0.010)

(0.467)

(0.485)

Net

£m

0.020

0.471

0.065

0.665

0.034

0.087

0.019

{0.010)

(0.467)

0.884

Total

£m

0.884

4.453

Housing Revenue Account

Grand Total

introduction of grant funding for Renewabie
Energy £0.003m and insuiation works £0.036m &
£0.002m.

WG/British Gas

Housing Revenue Account

0.041

0.041

0.000

0.041

0.041

* increases reflact new funding

0.041

4.494

Page 104




vou_:.m Pa[Od A 3IM)IPUAAX = DUBLIEA|

Page 105

(821°0) (608°0) e 150°€ 150°E 2lejol
palinbal salpn)s
se seale awwelBboud | Ajjiqisea 0} uoisiaosd aosueul4
0} pajeooj|e aq j|im 3abpng ajelod.iod jo aduejeq | 000°0 (¥20°0) 0000 ¥20°0 ¥20°0 ajesodio)
[IeMAJOH 10§ saluowl S$)08UU0)
uonuajad JOo J13A0[|0Y | 7070 (810°0) JALAY G9¢°0 G92°0 allysjull4
vi/i€Loe
ojul uopejuawajdwy
BuioBuo uj pajnsas aAey
sBuiaes aoaud J9Alj9p S9JJAI9S
0} JapJo uj suonenobau Jawoisn)
joesu0d pabuojoid | (221°0) (ZLL°0) G66°L 2LLe ZLLe B 12l
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Jayenpd
snolAdld | sanp/(4epun) *dx3 yobpng | j3obpng ealy
pasinbay uonoy aJUBLIBA JO asne’) aouedep | aosueuep jen}oy | pajyold fejol awuwesboad
(wnpnQE) g1L/z10Z Buiojiuol 1abpng |ejided
S3JIANUTS F1VHOdH0D

J XIAN3ddV



wuwnim pajoIg A aanjipuadxy = IUBLIEA

Hoday] 3y} JO €'p(’E UONIIS 39S &

0000 000°0 08L°0 08L°0 08L°0 jejol
«(91ebaibby)
saosueleA
0000 0000 08L°0 08L°0 08L0 8410
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Jauenpd
SNOIARId | sengjsepun) ‘dx3 j3obpng | )abpng ealy
palinbay uonoy asuelleA JO asne) asueliep | adueuep | jenjdoy | pajyold jejol awwesboid
(winynE) ¢1/Z10Z Buoyuol 3abpng |eyided
NINAD d¥1VIHLI AAMTO

O XION3ddV

Page 106



g:m Pa[yoid A dunjipuadxy = dueLIe >_

Hoday a3y JO €4 UOHIIS 33 4

Zevo 8€0°0 10C'S 691°S 69L°S . |lejolL
«(91eba1bby)
sadueleA
2000 000°0 190°0 190°0 19070 13430
: sealy sawweaboid 19410
awweiboid ayauosiep
Julid 8yl yyim pajeroosse
Adenoijied puewsap pajedionue AjjeuibLio
ul asealaul pajedionue ay) se ybiy se jou sem ajes dn
punj 0} ¢1L/€10Z Ul pasijiyn | 3)ej 3Y) se sueoT uoljedo|3y
pue paiinbai aq jjim sueoT] BuisnoH uo wogo'03
uonjesojas Buisnoy uo Jo puads Japun ue sem
puads Japun wQg0'03 3yl 819y} JOADMOH "S921Nn0sal
1396pnqg ¥1/£1L02 paaosxa 0) sanunuod
ayj uo [jed jsiy e aq puewap Aiojnje}s se SHIOM «(o1e6016B6Y)
[I!m wge0 03 JO Juadsiano jueln) sanljioe pajgesiq sdoueuep
jueib Ajijioe4 pajqesiq ayl uo Wiy 20’03 30 puadsiang | 0y’ 0 8£0°0 aL'S 80L’S 80L’S 93430
: JuswaAoldw] pue |[BM3Udy 10)29S djeAlld
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Japend)
SNOIABId | sangfsspun) ‘dx3 y9bpng | j8bpng ealy
paJinbay uonoy aJueleA JO ashe) asueuep | asueuep | [enjoy pajyoid jelol awwesboud
(unpnQE) g1/Z1L02 Buuojiuol 1a6png |ejde)d
S3AVIAY3S ALINNINNOD

O XION3ddVv

Page 107



Page 108



Page 109

sajyoud
ainjipuadxa ym ¢ Jauenp Guunp
auj| u) pabeuew pajo|dwod aq [Im
aie sawweiboid awayas yjed ajah) (1L12)
ainsugy julod uoung ayl (20€°0) vL0°0 L€6°0 £26°0 128°L | uopeuodsuel)
sajyoad
ainjipuadxa yjm Jayjeam
aul| uj pabeuew 9SJaApeE 0} anp SHIOM
ale sawweiboud juawssasse abpuq (H1Z)
ainsuj uo sAejap ybiis (evL0) | (9200) | 8SLO #8170 RZA sAemybiH
$824nosal bunsixa
woyy Buipuny
994 Aaessasau OM Y3Im pajenobau
ay} sauinbai pue Buiaq Apuanind
awayos fuoud e SV4 PIOW 10} Buipuny
buiaq SV PIOW 0} jeuofippe o} anp
anp A|a)i| y1L/€1L0Z passalboud jou aAey
oju) ainjjpuadxa sawayas abeujesp (312)
jo Buiseyd-ay pue| jo fjuolep (o1070) (goL-0) 1210 6220 £€69°0 Bupaaujbug
sawayos
Kouaioyja AB1aua 10}
Bulpunj sjjlie) ui paaj
pue aAes 0) puads
Jo J9jsueds} buniemy
ajyo.id jo asueApe ui (g127) sbuipiing
Apybyis aimypuadxy ¢€0°0 £€80°0 T4 5 cvo’l 4\ X4 aAljensjulwpy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
9 pouad | 6 pouad ‘dx3 19bpng | yabpng ealy
paiinbay uopoy aoueueA jO asne) ajueule)p | asueuUeA | |enjdy | pajyolid fejol awuweiboid
(6 Wuo) 17210z Buuojuoly Jebpng eyided
LINJWNOYIANAG

a XiaN3ddv



d XiON3ddV

(96Z'0) | (20L°0) | 8vL'S GGZ'S | L.8°0L Tv.iol
ajelo0joaa1q
juawuoliAug
ay) ulyym
awuweiboud [ejyded
Buiurewas ayj JaAo0
S@oueLIeA aAlje[nwin) 0L0°0 £10°0 60Z°0 961°0 $86'0 | S@dIAeg 19Yy10
P J9)enp ul
paja|dwos aq mou 0}
ale ajnpayds puiyaq (H12)
ale jey) sawayos S9JIAIBS
Buimouiog |epuapnid £2L°0 (890°0) | L62°C 6G£°C Zss'vy | pooyanoqybian
¥ Japent) ul ybnoayy
ob mou [jIm sjuawied (s12)
IHL l19mAjoH (Loo'0) | (sL0°0) | Zl0g0 zze0 9vS°0 uopesauabay
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
gpouad | gpouad | -dx3 | jebpng | 31abpng ealy
palinbay uonoy aouelIeA jJo asne) aojueuep | asuelep | [enoy | pajyold jeol awwesboid
(6 yyuow) £1/z1L0Z Buriojuop Jabpng [epde)
LNIINNOYIANT

Page 110



Bujobuo [[e ‘sawaydas snoLieA

Jo ajyoud puads ui sabueyd uonesnpy
sn|d suofjusjal snoLieA | 800°0 (zvZ0) [S190 L1670 L1670 [eroadsg
Buiobuo jje ‘sawayds snoleA
Jo ajyoud puads uj sabueys sjooyoss
sn|d suopuajas snoueA | (s£0°0) | (202°0) | zZE0'L 6€Z°L 6€2°L fiepuodeg
Y1/€102 Ul Jusunsaaul
10} 19A0 pajjod Jabpnq
juajeainba ‘gL0Z yaiew s|jooydss
paAlagal Jueb oM [euonIppY | (5200) | (992°0) | 89S°L veee veeT Aewd
Bujobuo |je ‘sawayds sNoUeA
jo ajyoud puads ui sabueys [elauan)
snjd suoyjuajai snolieA | L00'0 (go0t°0) 1zeo yel0 ¥ZL0 uopeanp3
Jayjeam FE:17) o)
0} anp paAejap awayds | 000°0 (y£0°0) | 920°0 090°0 090°0 uojjealddy
ulew
seb Buea| o) anp pake|ap sanua)
es| ppAu/p je awayas | 000°0 (590°0) | 000°0 G90°0 G90°0 Ajunwwo)
jyuswdinba yaaq sjood
Jsijeroads jo Ajddns ui sAejaqg | 000°0 (ozL0) | o000 0SL0 0SL0 Bujwwims
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
lauenp
SNOIA3Id | sengpsspun) | “dX3 yebpng | 196png ealy
pasinbay uonoy aJuellep jo asne) aJueleA | asueleA | [EBN)OY pajyoid jejol awweiboid

O XION3ddV

ONINYV3T ONO13dIT

(uinyno) 17210z Bunojuoy Jobpng jeyded

Page 111



_~|om_u=m pPa[yoid A aamipuadxy = adueLie \w_

noday 3y} JO £'p("€ UOKIAS 39S «

(og0'0) [(1s8'L) |[68LL 0170°6 0106 ‘lejol
«(91e62.166Y)
saouellep
83430
120°0 (¥10°0) LES'E LGS°E LGS'E
3) | (wgy) | (w3 W3z) | (w3)
lapend
SNOIAdIY | sengpsepun) |  "dX3 jobpng | jebpng ealy
pannbay uonoy aosueueA jJo asne) aosuelep | adueuep | jemoy pajyoid jejol awwesbold

3 XIGN3ddV

ONINJV3T ONOT134IN

(wninQ) g1/Z1L0Z Buuojuop 3e6png [ejden

Page 112



_-Iow?_m payoId A axmyipuadxy = adueLte >_

poday ayj JO £'p('E UONDSS 23S 4

age 113

(Lzo'z) |(oe80) |zvioL ze9'LL ze9°LL ‘|ejo)
awweiboid awaYyds S}29UU0)
S)03UU0) aAYysjulid alysjull4 ayj spiemo} «(91eba1bby)
9y} 10} 7 1/€10Z O3ul J19A0 pajjol uoinNqLIuod YYH ayj o} sasuelIeA
aq |im 396pnq w003 8yl | S8jejas wigs0°03 Jo puads tapun | ZLL0 (L50°0) | 6090 099°0 099°0 By10
suopnejdepy
(8gz'0) | 000°0 0001 000’ 000°L pajqesia
puads 1aa0 ay) jo ped
Jofew ayj 10} sjunod2e Jnq Jeal
3obpnq | ayj ul aje| pasapual Sem Yaiym
¥L/€1L0Z U} UO ||eD )S1l @q | JO pUodIas ayYj ‘sjoesjuod g ol sjuawaaosdug
liim puads JaAo wiggL 03 YL Jids sem 3oafoad uaysyy ayyl | (00L°L) [ €€ELO 186V yS8'y yS8'Y SOHM
sawwelboad
(év0'0) | 0000 G92°0 G92'0 G92°0 pajela|aaay
PLIELOZ ¥1/£10Z ojul JaA0 Buijjol
Jo sauenb jsul uj paunoul SaWIaYIs 9A]| UO papILIWod
aq [Iim ainyipuadxa ay L S1Z.,6'03 Jo puads Japun | (962°'L) | (226°0) | 188°E £58'y €68’V S)}4oM Jofely
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Jaupend
SNOIABId | seag/sepun) dx3 jyobpng | jobpng ealy
palinbay uonoy aoueleA jo asne) aoueleA | asuelep |  [enjoy pajyo.d jejol awweiboid

O XION3ddV

(uninQ) g1/Z10Z Buniojiuol yebpng jeyided

(viH) LNNO2OV INNIATY ONISNOH



Page 114



Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: WELFARE REFORM UPDATE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To update members on the latest position regarding Welfare Reform.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 As part of Flintshire’s response to the Welfare Reform agenda, a
number of work streams have been undertaken under the auspices of
the Welfare Reform Programme Board. This report identifies affected
areas and the Council’s response.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Flintshire Welfare Reform Programme Board

The Board was established to oversee Welfare Reform
implementation in the County. The Board has been well supported
and attendance has continued from Members and Officers of
Flintshire County Council and a range of voluntary and third sector
organisations including the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP). The Board has been led by the Leader of the Council.

The Board has monitored the programme of work and identifies risks
and possible mitigation of the impacts of Welfare Reform, and has
been run on a documented programme management structure with
clear documentation including a risk register and a communication
plan.

At the Board meeting on 1st July, it was agreed that the objectives of
the Board to oversee the development and successful implementation
of the Welfare Reform Strategy had been completed and that it was
now appropriate to look to arrangements to support the operational
aspects of managing Welfare Reform. It was agreed that for Council
Members this would be through reporting to Cabinet and Scrutiny and
for partner organisations through the Local Service Board and Advice
Management Board.

Page 115



3.02

3.03

3.04

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 2013/2014

The new scheme replaced the original Council Tax Benefit scheme
and despite a number of legal issues that arose nationally with the
interpretation of regulations, implementation was successfully
achieved to ensure that Council Tax bills could be sent to all
residents.

Early indications are that despite the introduction of the wider Welfare
Reform changes that collection of Council Tax compares well with the
position last year. However the change has resulted in higher levels of
telephone and general contact with the authority.

This scheme is for 2013/14 and Welsh authorities are still waiting to
hear if there will be any changes to the scheme in 2014/15 and details
of how it will be funded.

Under-Occupying Social Housing Tenants

From the 1% April 2013, new rules regarding benefit payments for
those in Social Housing have been applied in cases where tenants
were under occupying the property (known as the Bedroom Tax).
Under these rules, 1,477 working age social housing tenants have
had their housing benefit reduced, losing housing benefit totalling
£922,000 pa.

Flintshire County Council has amended its housing policies to meet
the challenges created by under occupation. With closer working
between Flintshire and Registered Social Landlords we have been
maximising the support available to tenants and ensuring effective use
of stock via proactive transfers and nominations.

Benefit Cap

The Benefit Cap will be implemented in a phased approach between
July and September 2013, with a restriction on Housing Benefit
payment where the household income exceeds the cap.

Current information received indicates that this will affect forty-four
Flintshire households (16 social housing tenants and 28 private sector
tenants) and they will lose combined annual welfare benefit income of
£153,000. The DWP have confirmed that this is an initial indication
and could be lower once they have fully analysed each claim and
reduced the number of households affected due to exemptions from

capping.

Page 116



3.05

3.06

3.07

Personal Independence Payment

On the 8 June 2013, Personal Independence Payment was introduced
for new claimants aged 16-64 years old. The benefit, which is
replacing Disability Living Allowance, is designed to support disabled
people to live independent lives and includes a new face-to-face
assessment and regular reviews.

Approximately 4,000 Flintshire households will have their
current Disability Living Allowance award reassessed under the
stricter Personal Independence Payment criteria during the period
2013 — 2017. With an expected loss of disability benefit income
amongst these households will be £3 million pa.

Discretionary Assistance Fund

The Discretionary Assistance Fund (DAF) was introduced in Wales on
the 2nd April 2013. Two grant payments are available; i) Individual
Assistance Payment; ii) Emergency Assistance Payment.

Information on the DAF has been circulated to stakeholders
throughout the County, including relevant Council Service
Departments; Flintshire Advisor Network; Supporting People
Providers and to Town and Community Councils.

Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP)

It is expected that this year will create significant financial challenges
to many households and individuals as the changes to Welfare
Benefits are starting to be implemented A policy has been developed
to detail the administration and processes that are to be followed
when dealing with applications for Discretionary Housing Payments
(DHP) and awarding financial assistance. This was formally approved
and adopted by Cabinet on 23rd April 2013.

The Housing Benefit Service are working closely with colleagues
across the Council and from partner organisations to identify people
who DHP can help as a way of a short term solution in order to reach
a sustainable outcome with help and support.

Early indications show that there has been an increase in the number

of applications received for DHP. A report on DHP for the first quarter
of 2013/14 is also on this agenda.

Page 117



3.08

3.09

3.10

The Local Support Services Framework

The Chief Executive met with the DWP Regional Manager for North &
Mid Wales on 24th June to discuss the Local Support Services
Framework. This work is the exploration by DWP of how local
authorities and the third and voluntary sectors can help customers on
a local basis. It was reported that in North Wales, Flintshire was
amongst the most advanced in preparing residents for
implementation. Flintshire and Gwynedd officers will now be working
on a programme across North Wales Authorities to look at digital
inclusion (computer access) and Money Advice (household budget
training).

Advice Management Board (AMB)

To ensure that the residents of Flintshire are informed and supported
during the reforms the Authority has engaged with the Voluntary
Sector. A range of representatives from the third and voluntary
sectors are represented and now includes Credit Unions operating in
Flintshire.

The AMB is operating in a climate of trying to mitigate the challenges
of Welfare Reform whilst supporting each other in difficult times when
resource are scare and demand is increasing. It has a number of
workstreams and is to deliver a proposed Flintshire Money and Advice
Strategy to the Local Services Board on the 9th July. This will include
a number of key outcomes and deliverables.

The aim is to enhance co-operation in support of residents
recognising the need to reduce duplication across organisations.

Other workstreams that the Board are involved with include: mapping
and access to affordable credit, mapping and access to emergency
provisions — loans, grants and access to food banks, digital
accessibility and inclusion.

Welfare Reform Response Team

The Council has a team of three people currently funded through WG
and Flintshire funding to 31%' March 2014. Flintshire County Council
and DWP data is being used to identify households within Flintshire
who are at most risk of losing household income. The first residents
being targeted by the team for assistance are those affected by the
introduction of the Benefit Cap and vulnerable social housing tenants
impacted by under occupation.

Following the success of the two-year project to assist households
affected by changes to the Local Housing Allowance the Welsh
Government agreed to continue the funding for Flintshire’s Welfare
Reform Liaison Officer post during the current financial year
(2013/14).

Page 118



3.1

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

Empowering Flintshire’s Communities

The welfare reform training and development programme is providing
front line staff with knowledge and the confidence to provide initial
advice, support and reassurance to residents affected by the reforms.
The communication strategy is ensuring that accessible information
on the welfare reforms is being disseminated to all stakeholders.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members note and comment accordingly on the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There will be an impact of reducing benefits payable to residents who
must be considered as our most financially vulnerable as that they
had previously qualified for means tested benefits.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

As a Legislative decision the impacts have been assessed by DWP,
WG, WLGA, at an Authority level impacts have been recognised.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As benefits reductions are implemented there will be an increase
demand on staff resource in the advise and explanation to residents.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

None.

Page 119



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Ken A. Jones, Revenues & Benefits Manager
Telephone: 01352 702286
Email: ken.a.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 120



Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: 11" JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENTS UPDATE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide an update in relation to Discretionary Housing Payments
(DHP) following the consultation and adoption of the DHP Policy for
2013/2014.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 DHPs are discretionary sums payable by the Council to a person who
receives Housing Benefit or Universal Credit where they still appear to
require additional financial assistance with their housing costs.

2.02 The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) provides funding to
Local Authorities in order to provide DHPs.

2.03 This year the DWP have significantly increased their contributions to
Local Authorities compared to funding in previous years, this is due to
the expected effects of Central Government's Welfare Reform
Programme. The Council added a further £135,000 to it's existing
budget provision for 2013/14 bringing resources available up to
£544 645 (Flintshire £302,526 and DWP £242,119).

2.04 It is expected that this year will create significant financial challenges
to many households and individuals as the changes to Welfare
Benefits are starting to be implemented.

2.05 A policy has been developed to detail the administration and
processes that are to be followed when implementing the scheme and
awarding financial assistance.

2.06 The DHP Policy was formally approved and adopted by Cabinet on
23 April 2013, having previously been considered by Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Housing Scrutiny
Committee. In adopting the policy, it was agreed that there would be
quarterly reporting to Scrutiny and Cabinet.

Page 121



2.07

2.08

3.00

3.01

3.02

The objectives of the DHP scheme are:

To encourage and help keep people in employment.

To prevent homelessness and aid people to retain sustainable
tenancies.

To help people who are trying to help themselves.
To help keep families together.
To support vulnerable people in the community.

To help people through times in which they are stressed and
vulnerable.

To help alleviate poverty.

To assist people that are particularly disadvantaged by Welfare
Reforms.

The DHP scheme payments are designed to be a last resort, short
term or lump sum payment to assist people to meet their housing
costs to help them to achieve a sustainable situation for the future. It
is not a long term replacement for reductions in Housing Benefit or
other Welfare Benefits.

CONSIDERATIONS

Analysis shows that applications for DHP have increased by 42%
when compared to the same period last year.

In the first quarter of this year we have processed 186 applications for
DHP. Analysis of these cases shows the following:

44% of 186 applications (81 cases) were successful and have
been awarded a DHP.

45% of the total applications (85 cases) were from Council
Tenants.

28% of the total applications (51 cases) were from tenants of
Housing Association properties.

27% of the total applications (50 cases) were from Private Tenants

Page 122



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

The applications dealt with to date show that almost 90% are due to
welfare reform changes, the majority of these being a result of the
Maximum Rent Social Sector (sometimes referred to as the “Bedroom
Tax”) which reduces Housing Benefit at a percentage if the tenant has
spare rooms in their property.

The significant number of applications which have been unsuccessful
was to be expected at this early stage, and it could be due to the
recent media coverage encouraging everybody who is affected to

apply.

However, when applications are dealt with, it would appear that nearly
half of them are not in need of support through DHP as they are able
to meet their housing costs, albeit that they have not had to incur this
expenditure previously.

The policy contains details of how claim outcomes can be challenged
if customers are not satisfied with the outcome. This is by way of a
Review. The policy sets out the procedure for review being that at
first stage the case is passed to a Team Leader to review, then if the
customer is still not satisfied, this is then passed to the Benefits
Manager for a final decision.

So far, two decisions by the staff assessing applications have been
subject to a first stage review by Team Leaders. In both cases, more
information was provided at the review and the claims were both paid
as a result of this and the original decisions were overturned.

The Housing Benefit Service are working closely with colleagues in
Housing and wider across the Council and from partner organisations
to identify people who DHP can help as a way of a short term solution
in order to reach a sustainable outcome with help and support.

As detailed above, applications have increased, but just under half of
those were unsuccessful, this has meant that expenditure of the first
quarter of the year is around £46,000 which equates to 8.5% of the
overall provision of £544,645.

Many of the changes will take effect over time, for example the
Maximum Rent Social Sector restrictions reduce Housing Benefit by
an amount each week if a person has a spare room. This will mean
that people may try initially to make up the shortfalls by juggling
finances, or making lifestyle changes, however, for some this may not
be sustainable in the longer term. Others may not be coming forward
to make claims at this stage as they are not yet under pressure from
landlords due to rent arrears.

Page 123



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

6.02

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There is a total budget available for 2013/14 of £544,645.

The number of unsuccessful applications has had an effect on the
expenditure incurred at this stage. Current expenditure is around
£46,000 which equates to 8.5% of the total amount provided for in
this year.

It is expected that this will start to increase steadily over the next
couple of months with a more significant increase as we move
towards Quarter 3 and Quarter 4 as the impacts of Welfare Reform
start to take hold.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The Welfare Reform Programme has recognised the need for
proactive work and support to try and mitigate, as much as possible,
the effects on vulnerable residents in Flintshire. Residents may be
affected by changes to Welfare Benefits which are happening at the
same time.

Whilst the numbers of claims for DHP will increase as a result of
Welfare Reform, it is important to note that DHP is also available to
those who are experiencing financial difficulty in meeting their housing
costs who are not directly affected by these changes, but are subject
to other significant difficulties in their personal situation.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Currently resourced, although the increase in workloads is under
constant review to ensure sufficient resources are maintained to meet
the demand for the service.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

Page 124



11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths, Benefits Manager
Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



Agenda Item 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 11 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: HEAD OF HR AND OD

SUBJECT: ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND

AREAS OF IMPROVEMENT

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To analyse the performance of the organisation in relation to
management of attendance, as reported in the Council’s Performance
Report to Cabinet in March 2013, and to set out Corporate
Management Team’s plan and commitment to achieve improvements
in performance.

1.02 To identify the measures that are currently being taken, to identify
actions that are planned for implementation and to consider further to
options to improve attendance levels across the organisation.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council’'s performance on attendance worsened during 2012/13,
particularly during quarters 1 and 3. Actions to address the downturn
in performance have already been identified and are in the process of
being implemented. Further actions to address the low performance
are detailed in this report and will form part of specific Action Plans for
implementation by service areas.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The Council has an Improvement Target for attendance - CHR/002 -
the number of working days/shifts per full time equivalent (FTE) local
authority employee lost due to sickness absence. This indicator was
reported as having a ‘Red’ RAG status for performing below the target
for the first three quarters of 2012/13. The annual outturn for 2012/13
was 11.03 against a target of 9.8 days.

3.02 The Council has evaluated its approach to managing attendance by
reviewing its policy and considering the range of interventions
available that are proven to be effective in addressing the main
causes of absence and reducing levels of sickness absence overall.

Page 127



3.03

3.04

3.056

3.06

Reports on managing attendance published by organisations such as
CIPD (Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development) and APSE
(Association for Public Service Excellence) indicate that the most
effective measures for managing attendance include:

e a robust attendance management policy which is followed
through at every stage by the manager - i.e. return to work
interviews, attendance review meetings, through to dismissal
where appropriate;

an effective policy which separates long term and short term
absence and defines approaches for managing each;

offering flexible working patterns;

the regular review of patterns of absence, e.g. Fridays and
Mondays;

ensuring work related causes of absence such as excessive
work demands or poor working conditions are managed and
minimised,

focused interventions such as physiotherapy for certain work
related injuries to enable employees to return to work sooner,
helping to reduce long term absence or preventing long term
absence from occurring in the first place;

employee incentives such as rewarding 100 per cent
attendance throughout the year by giving an additional day of
annual leave.

a strong attendance culture where the significance of excellent
attendance to the service, service users and customers and
the financial constraints created as a result of absence are
firmly emphasised.

As part of our evaluation of current arrangements, we were able to
confirm that the Council’s policy includes many of the policy-related
features recommended above. Managers are required to conduct
return to work interviews following each and every absence, to follow
through with an attendance review meeting when employees hit the
tolerance triggers, to refer to Occupational Health at the appropriate
stage and to act on the advice that is given and to proceed to
dismissal if the necessary improvements in attendance are not
achieved.

Other tools include the appropriate and timely use of Risk
Assessments, including Stress Risk Assessments, which if used
effectively will act as a proactive measure to prevent absences from
occurring. In some areas of the Council, 100% attendance is
recognised at team and one to one meetings — this practice needs to
be implemented consistently across the Council.

Heads of Service are provided with monthly management information

on long and short term absences and patterns of absence which they
cascade down to their managers as an additional prompt to take the

Page 128



3.07

3.08

3.09

necessary actions to manage attendance issues effectively and within
appropriate timeframes.

Nevertheless, recent reviews of cases and practices and current
performance levels suggest a number of shortfalls in our approach to
attendance management. These include the policy not being followed
rigorously and consistently by all managers, a lack of a systematic
approach to ensuring appropriate follow up on tolerance triggers and
referrals to Occupational Health, managers and supervisors not
having the requisite skills to manage attendance issues competently,
and an organisational culture where managing attendance has not
been addressed as a priority.

Improvements in managing attendance have been implemented over
the last six to nine months, but it is acknowledged that such measures
can take some time to have a positive and visible impact on levels of
attendance. These are:

o the introduction of a physiotherapy pilot in the Streetscene
Service to provide early treatment for injuries / muscloskeletal
problems to support employees to remain in the workplace or
to promote an earlier return to work;

e the design and introduction of a 'return to work pathway' in
Community Services to support the earlier return to work for
employees who have been on long term absence and / or to
encourage reasonable temporary or longer term adjustments to
be made to allow a reintroduction to the workplace sooner;

e the introduction of case conferences between the line
manager, the employee (where appropriate), HR and
Occupational Health to plan and facilitate a return to work as
the earliest opportunity;

e coaching / refresher training of managers and supervisors to
improve the quality and rigour of the management of
attendance issues starting with key areas where absences are
high;

¢ the inclusion of attendance as a standard item of business on
Department Management Team meetings’

o the appropriate and effective use of ‘working from home’ where
this is planned and where the employee is able to undertake
meaningful work productively - e.g. where an employee’s
physical condition post surgery might hinder them attending the
workplace, but where they are able to deliver their work
objectives from home.

As referenced above, a physiotherapy pilot has been operating in
Streetscene Services since November 2012. Musculoskeletal
problems (including back problems) are the major discernable cause
of sickness absence in Flintshire County Council. During 2011/2012,
musculoskeletal related absence accounted for over 20% of the
absence within the Streetscene Service and was the number one

Page 129



3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

recorded reason for absence.

It was agreed that a pilot would be undertaken to establish if tangible
benefits could be obtained from providing a managed physiotherapy
service and if so, what conditions needed to be in place for the
provision of physiotherapy to have a positive impact on employees,
their well being and their attendance at work.

The intention was that the information and results obtained during the
pilot would be used to inform decisions regarding the future delivery of
physiotherapy services within Flintshire County Council across other
services.

The key features of the pilot are:
Direct referral to Pen Y Lon Physiotherapy by line managers when:-

e an employee is absent from work due to a musculoskeletal
problem/ injury or

e s likely to go off or
the employee is at risk of further injury to self or others as a
result of a musculoskeletal problem.

¢ [nitial Assessment of employees by Pen Y Lon Physiotherapy
followed by a report to line managers and occupational health
on condition, recommendations with regard to work and details
of proposed treatment

e The provision of up to five physiotherapy sessions where
required with update and discharge reports to managers and
Occupational Health Physiotherapists and Occupational Health
professionals working closely to identify other contributing
factors and underlying issues to provide holistic support to
managers and employees.

The pilot has been positively received by managers and employees
and early indicators show that interventions are having an impact on
helping employees to stay in work and to come back early.

Since the pilot scheme was launched on 5" November 2012, 23
people have been referred to Pen Y Lon Physiotherapy via their line
managers.

Seven people were discharged with advice following an initial
assessment with a Physiotherapist. Those employees who required
physiotherapy have received on average of 2 — 3 sessions.

The average time from referral to initial assessment has been just

over 3 days. Waiting time for NHS physiotherapy treatment via
General Practitioners is reported to be 3-4 months at present.

Page 130



3.17

3.18

3.19

We are in the process of measuring the tangible benefits of the in-
house physiotherapy services in terms of identifying reductions in
sickness absence and in particular, muscloskeletal type absences.
Initial evidence suggests that employees who would have had
extended absence whilst waiting for NHS physiotherapy have returned
to work much quicker, having received an appointment within 2/3 days
of the referral. This has accelerated their return to work significantly.
Further evidence of benefits will be available over the coming weeks.

Measures to improve attendance that are being introduced currently
are:

e publishing / reporting attendance rates broken down by service
to improve visibility of the 'hot spots' in the organisation and to
increase the accountability of all managers in managing
attendance as a priority;

¢ identifying targets for improvement for each service / divisional
area,

e reporting performance on attendance on a quarterly basis
within every service's Quarterly Performance Report and
providing a commentary on the reasons for low performance
and corrective actions being taken;

e provision of additional management information as part of the
suite of reports to include the organisation's "Top 50' short term
/ frequent absences and long term absence as an assurance
measure for checking that all cases are being managed in
accordance with the policy;

¢ introducing flexible working across the organisation, enabling
employees to meet / balance other personal or family
commitments more flexibly, thereby reducing sickness absence
for those reasons;

o extending the physiotherapy service to other service areas
where there are high levels of muscloskeletal related absence
(e.g. in direct care and support type services in Community
Services);

e extending the concept of the 'return to work' pathway into other
services, particularly where there are significant numbers of
long term absence cases;

o effective management of attendance as part of the
Probationary Period process for new employees so that
sickness absence issues are addressed robustly during the first
six months of employment;

e further analysis of the main causes of absence and
discouraging the use of the category ‘other on the Council’s
Sickness forms.

To support and enable the improvements identified, structured Action
Plans will be developed by all services, drilling down to team level as
appropriate, to include core elements that will apply to all employees
and services, supplemented by additional interventions to address the

Page 131



3.20

3.21

4.00

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

particular attendance issues and causes of absence that are pertinent
to each service. Managers, Heads of Service and Directors will be
accountable for ensuring that the plans are implemented and are
monitored and managed on a regular basis to support the step-
change required in performance.

On a corporate level, the Corporate Management Team will be
responsible for analysing and monitoring trends and levels of
performance across the Council.

The Council may consider additional measures to monitor and
manage the impact of sickness absence, including the costs. When
employees are absent, particularly in front line services, this results in:

e Paying overtime to other employees to cover absence

¢ Replacing with temporary pool workers or agency workers

e Reduction in performance and productivity

e Reduced customer and service user satisfaction levels and
continuity

e Low morale among colleagues who have to take on
responsibility for the work of absent employees.

Given the on-going financial pressures for the Council, the need to
achieve efficiencies, improve performance and productivity and
demonstrate value for money is key. Any improvements in attendance
levels, particularly in front line services, will result in savings, or cost
avoidance at the very least. The organisation should consider the
introduction of specific efficiency targets to underpin the required
culture change and to place attendance as a workforce priority.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members note the analysis and support the on-going work to
address attendance levels and underlying causes.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The identification of the financial implications / costs on the impact of
attendance to be considered in accordance with paragraph 3.21.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

Page 132



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

EQUALITIES

Any proposed changes in relation to new employee incentives, or
approaches to attendance management, will be assessed from an
equality impact perspective.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

No further implications at this stage.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Further consultation will be required should there be any significant
changes to our policy or approach.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Not applicable at this stage although commitment will be sought from
the Trade Unions to support and endorse a more targeted approach
for managing attendance.

APPENDICES

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS) INFORMATION ACT 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

CONTACT OFFICER - Helen Stappleton
Telephone — 01352 702720
E-mail address — Helen.stappleton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: ASSET MANAGEMENT AS A FLINTSHIRE FUTURES
WORKSTREAM

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide an update on the Assets Workstream within the Flintshire
Futures Programme.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The majority of our corporate property portfolio is offices and staff
accommodation with County Hall being by far the largest and least
efficient. The last condition survey identified that there is a backlog
£6million of maintenance required; an update has been commissioned
and work is being concluded to finalise this re-survey work.

2.02 The current space allocation is almost 12sqm per desk and as there is
mostly a 1:1 desk/person provision this equates to an annual cost of
£1280 per desk/person. By modernising the way we work and
reducing the space provision to 8sgm per desk this can be reduced to
£600 and by reducing the desk provision to 1 desk for 2 people the
cost per person could be reduced to £300, over a 76% reduction.

2.03 In addition to this we can reduce the amount of storage space we
currently use. In County Hall, 10% of the net internal area is dedicated
for storage use (that's almost 10 tennis courts and excludes space
within offices for filing etc). This costs £156,000 per year. By
implementing Electronic Document Management, dedicated storage
space can be reduced to 2% of floor area; in a smaller building this
could mean a reduction in running costs of £130,000 each year.

2.04 It's important to reiterate the areas the assets workstream touches on
within other workstreams of the Flintshire Futures Programme. For
example:-

e Human resources and the development of supportive policies
that assist a transition from current to future (agile and mobile
working);

¢ Document management through electronic document scanning,
retention and retrieval;

Page 135



2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

e Development of agile and mobile ways of working through the
use of new technologies;

¢ Intensification of building use and a cultural change from
employees presenteeism to output based management by
objectives;

¢ An employer of choice;

o Efficiency savings through the increased utilisation of space
leading to an overall reduction in core office requirements;

What we are seeking to do, therefore, is move from a traditional
cellular office based approach to one which is highly responsive,
flexible and which uses space intensively and is supported through
modern technology.

Targets have been set within the workstream and these are set out
below:-
e Reduction in floor space from 12m2 to 8m2 per person, this will
continue to reduce further in time;
e Reduce level of storage from 10% to 2% (this could mean a
reduction in running costs of £120k pa or more);
Reduce floor space to 50% by 2016;
Reduce office costs by 50% by 2016;
95% of the workforce to be mobile or agile workers by 2016;
explore a total facilities management solution involving the
integration of a number of hard and soft FM functions such as
security, CCTV, Maintenance and Repairs, campus
management, cleaning and catering;
e Increase the number of assets offered up on the basis of
Community Asset Transfers.

CONSIDERATIONS

As noted previously County Hall is an expensive building to run and
maintain as it is largely cellular and not efficient in its use of space.
Officers are currently exploring a number of options in relation to the
Mold Campus accommodation which involve do nothing (which is not
sustainable) to a major relocation. Clearly agile and mobile working
will enable us to reduce our existing footprint and office requirements
and in doing so create efficiencies, through reduced running costs. It
will also enable significant step change to be undertaken in terms of
organisational design and management allowing us to plan our future
service models more robustly. This information will support the
development and certainty around key aspects of the Medium Term
Financial Plan.

As outlined earlier, the organisation should be adopting the key
principles of agile and mobile working now. This includes reducing
the significant volumes of paper currently being stored in most offices,
increasing the utilisation of office space detailed in the report and

Page 136



3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

working towards these accommodation standards, as well as making
more efficient use of our conferencing facilities. The speed of this
change needs to be accelerated and a more ‘can do’ attitude needs to
be adopted.

We are continuing the work to review our current third party lease
arrangements with commercial organisations and where it is
appropriate and cost effective to do so we are terminating these
arrangements at suitable lease break points or termination dates.

As part of a wider property asset review linked to the Assets
Workstream of Flintshire Futures, we will be undertaking a
fundamental review of the entire Councils asset base to establish its
efficiency, effectiveness, age, location and number. The overall
outcome of this workstream will be to identify opportunities for space
sharing, reduce duplication and over provision and create efficiencies.
We will also, as part of this work, consider alternative and more
innovative funding mechanisms which may assist in levering in
additional capacity and value.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Efficiencies will be created through the rationalisation of space and
development of New Ways of Working (NWOW) which will feed in and
support our MTFP.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Not as a direct result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Should be positive in terms of reducing energy and hence carbon
emissions.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Positive in improving access opportunities for those with disabilities.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Not as a direct result of this report.

Page 137



10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Key stakeholders and Members is ongoing activity.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Report to Scrutiny on 11" October 2012.
Report to Scrutiny on 17" January 2013.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None included.
Contact Officer: Neal Cockerton

Telephone: 01352 703169
Email: neal.cockerton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 138



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: 11 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 ltems feed into a Committee's Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be referred
by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council, or Directors.
Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work Programme and
the Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful or a 'test of
significance' to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council's priorities and/or objectives?

Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

How, where and why were the issues identified?

Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any
evidence of this? |s there evidence of public dissatisfaction?

Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

PoNh=

No o

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine
the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they are
members. By reviewing and prioritising the forward work programme
Members are able to ensure it is member-led and includes the right issues.
A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for
Members' consideration which has been updated following the last meeting.

Page 139



400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme attached
as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

N/A

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.
Contact Officer: Robert Robins

Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: robert.robins@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 140



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

11T obed

DATE SUBJECT 0&S REPORT FROM
FOCUS
Thursday | Workforce as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly Monitoring and development H of HR & OD
12t update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13)
September
2013 Information Commissioner’s Office Audit of Data Protection | Information D&GM
at FCC
Procurement as a Flintshire Futures workstream Monitoring HofICT&CS
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 3 Monitoring HF
Q1 Performance Reporting Monitoring and development MEM
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
Thursday | Customer Services as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6
10" October | monthly update, as per the resolution of the committee on | Monitoring and development H of ICT&CS
2013 17/1/13)
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 4 Monitoring HF
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
Thurs;hday Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 5 Monitoring HF
14
November | Procurement as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 Monitoring and development H of ICT&CS
2013 monthly update, as per the resolution of the committee on
17/1/13)
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\1\2\4\Al00004421\$5h1Iwlixq.doc Last printed 03/07/2013 3:26 PM

Page 1 of 2



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

Thursday 5™ | The 2014/15 Overview & Scrutiny budget consultation
December- | meetings will take place between these two dates. Eight
Wednesday | meetings are shown on the schedule of meetings and
18" following consultation during the summer, the meetings
December | which are needed will be organised.
Thursﬂc}iay Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 6 Monitoring HF
12
December | Q2 Performance reporting Monitoring and development MEM
2013
Finance as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly
update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13) | Monitoring and development HF
T Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM
@ Thursday | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 7 Monitoring HF
S| 16" January
= 2014 Assets as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 monthly Monitoring and development HAT
ﬁ update, as per the resolution of the committee on 17/1/13)
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

Legend: CE = Chief Executive; HF = Head of Finance; H of HR&OD = Head of Human Resources & Organisational Development;

H of ICT&CS = Head of ICT & Customer Service; H of L&DS = Head of Legal & Democratic Services; HAT = Head of Assets &
Transportation; MEM = Member Engagement Manager

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\1\2\4\Al00004421\$5h1Iwlixq.doc Last printed 03/07/2013 3:26 PM

Page 2 of 2



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/15 - 2018/19
	Enc. 1 for Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/15 - 2018/19
	Enc. 2 for Medium Term Financial Plan 2014/15 - 2018/19

	5 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Outturn) and Capital Programme 2012/13 (Outturn)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Outturn) and Capital Programme 2012/13 (Outturn)
	Enc. 2 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2012/13 (Outturn) and Capital Programme 2012/13 (Outturn)

	6 Welfare Reform Update
	7 Discretionary Housing Payments Update
	8 ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND AREAS OF IMPROVEMENT
	9 Asset Management as a Flintshire Futures Workstream
	10 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme


